
 
         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA   
August 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m. 
Sweet Home Police Department, 1950 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 PLEASE silence all cell phones – Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in. 
 
A. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
B. Roll Call:   

Councilor Briana   Councilor Gourley  
   Councilor Coleman   Mayor Mahler  
   Councilor Gerson   Councilor Trask 
   Councilor Goble 

 
C. Consent Agenda: 

a) Approval of Minutes:  July 17, 2018 – Work Session (pg. 3)
July 24, 2018 – Work Session (pg. 4)

                                   July 24, 2018 – Regular Meeting (pg. 5-9)
 

D. Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions: 
 

E. Old Business: 
a) Request for Council Action - ODOT Project Amendment (US 20: 54th Ave to Riggs Hill 

Road) (pg. 10-44) 
b) Request for Council Action - MOU – Sweet Home Community Foundation (pg. 45-47) 

 
F. New Business: 

a) Request for Council Action - Charter Amendment Discussion (pg. 48-59)
b) Capitol Christmas Tree Washington D.C Trip Discussion Only 

 
G. Introduction, First and Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 

a) Request for Council Action -Ordinance Bill No. 3 for 2018 - An Ordinance Relating to 
Rate Increases for Solid Waste Management in the City of Sweet Home, Oregon and 
Repealing Sweet Home Ordinance Bill No.1261 with an Expediency Clause. (pg. 60-78)

b) Request for Council Action – Ordinance Bill No. 4 for 2018 – Sweet Home Ordinance 
Pertaining to Council Rules and Amending SHMC Chapter 2.04 Titled City Council. (pg.79-99)

 
H. Third Reading of Ordinance Bills (Roll Call Vote Required) 

 
I. Resolutions 
 

WIFI Passcode: 
guestwifi 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.1 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
J. Reports of Committees:  
Administrative & Finance/Property Goble 
Public Safety/Traffic Safety  Briana 
Public Works Mahler 
Park and Tree Committee  Trask 
Youth Advisory Council Gourley 
Chamber of Commerce Coleman 
Fire District Trask 
Council of Governments  Gerson 
Area Commission on Transportation Briana 
Solid Waste Advisory Council Goble 
Ad Hoc Committee on Health (Minutes 07-16-18) (pg.100) Gourley 
Capitol Christmas Tree Committee Coleman 
 
K. Reports of City Officials: 

a) Mayor’s Report 
b) City Manager’s Report 
c) Department Director’s Reports: 

i. Finance Director 
(1) Checks by Date (pg. 101-102)
(2) Finance Report - July (pg. 103-104)

ii. Library Services Director 
iii. Community and Economic Development Director  
iv. Police Chief 

(1) PD Statistics Report (pg. 105-154)
v. Public Works Director 

(1) Engineer’s Report (pg. 155-157)
vi. City Attorney’s Report  

 
L. Adjournment  

 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.2 *REVISED 08/10/18



 SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING WORK SESSION MINUTES 

 
 July 17, 2018 
 
 
The City Council Work Session was opened at 4:00 p.m. at Sweet Home Sanitation. 
 
Task Committee of the Council: Councilor Briana, Councilor Gerson, Councilor Goble 
     
Staff:  City Manager Ray Towry  
 
Media: None 
               
The purpose of the meeting was to review the recycling crisis.  The Task Committee met with 
Scott Gagner, Site Manager and Brian White, District Manager of Sweet Home Sanitation.  
There was time for questions and answers including short and long-term solutions to the world-
wide recycling crisis.  The committee by consensus found an 8% increase for solid waste rates 
to be reasonable and will submit their recommendation to the full Council during the July 24th 
regular meeting. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:04 p.m. 
  
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the July 17, 2018 City 
Council Work Session Meeting. 
 
 
              
           Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                     
City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.3 *REVISED 08/10/18



 SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING WORK SESSION MINUTES 

 
 July 24, 2018 
 
 
The City Council Work Session was opened at 5:30 p.m. at the Sweet Home Police Department. 
 
Roll Call: Councilor Briana  P   Councilor Gourley  P    
  Councilor Coleman  P  Mayor Mahler  P  
  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor Trask  P  
  Councilor Goble                  P (5:45pm)  
     
Staff:  City Attorney Robert Snyder, Police Chief Jeff Lynn, Works Director Greg Springman, City 
Manager Ray Towry and Recording Secretary Julie Fisher. 
 
Media: None 
               
The purpose of the meeting was to review draft Council Rules.  The Council discussed Order of 
Business for Council meetings and by consensus decided to keep Recognition of Visitors and 
Hearing of Petitions at the beginning of the meeting.  A final draft of the Council Rules will be 
presented to the Council during their regular meeting on August 14, 2018 for approval. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:19 p.m. 
  
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the July 24, 2018 City 
Council Work Session Meeting. 
 
 
              
           Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                     
City Manager Pro Tem – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.4 *REVISED 08/10/18



SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
July 24, 2018 

 
Mayor Mahler called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Sweet Home Police Department. The Pledge 
of Allegiance was recited. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, Community and Economic Development Director Jerry Sorte, 
Library Services Director Rose Peda, Finance Director Brandon Neish, Public Works Director Greg 
Springman, Police Chief Jeff Lynn and Recording Secretary Julie Fisher. 
 
Visitors Registered to Speak:  
 
Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era  
            Alex Paul, Albany Democrat Herald 
     
Roll Call: Councilor Briana  P  Councilor Gourley             P 
  Councilor Coleman  P  Mayor Mahler   P  
  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor  Trask  P  
  Councilor Goble  P 
 
 
Consent Agenda: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recognition of Visitors & Hearing 
of Petition: 
 
Old Business: 
 
New Business: 
 
Request for Council Action – Sweet 
Home City Hall Financing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda as 
submitted. (Trask/Goble) Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 
Opposed, 0 Absent 
 
Items on the consent agenda are as follows: 
Approval of Minutes: July 10, 2018 – City Council  
                                 July 10, 2018 - WS 
 
 
 
None 
 
None 
 
 
 
Finance Director Neish presented the Council with various Debt 
Service Options for consideration to complete the new City Hall 
Project.  Options included Inter-fund loan, General Bond, and 
Full Faith and Credit Bond.  Pros and Cons were discussed for 
each option and Legal authority was presented for each type of 
option.   
 
Motion to request City Staff prepare an inter-fund loan with 
current LGIP interest rate in accordance with ORS to be 
repaid over 10 years (Gerson/Gourley)  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.5 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request for Council Action – City 
Acceptance of Property. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                              
Introduction, First and Second 
Reading of Ordinance Bills: 
 
Introduction: 
 
First Reading: 
 
Second Reading: 
 
Third and Final Reading of 
Ordinance Bills: 
Ordinance Bill No. 2 for 2018; an 
Ordinance Amending Title 17 of 
Sweet Home Municipal Code and 
Declaring a need for an Expediency 
Clause. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Councilor Gourley 
Mayor Mahler 
Councilor Trask 
Councilor Briana 
Councilor Coleman  
Councilor Gerson 
Councilor Goble 
 
Motion passed with 5 Ayes and 2 Opposed (Briana/Goble) 
 
City Manager Towry introduced the request for Council 
consideration on whether they wished to pursue acquiring 
property on Long Street next to the Skate Park that Cross 
Development LLC (Dollar General) wishes to gift to the City.  
Discussion ensued on research of limitations of use of the 
property as well as title and lien search prior to any action. 
 
Motion to accept the property from Cross Development LLC 
(Dollar General) (Briana) Motion dies for lack of a second. 
 
Motion to direct staff to further evaluate this matter 
(Gourley/Gerson).  Motion passed with 6 Ayes, 0 Opposed 
and 1 Abstain (Goble, Conflict of Interest) 
 
 
 
None 
 
None 
 
None 
 
 
 
Community and Economic Development Director Jerry Sorte 
read by title only, Ordinance Bill No. 2 for 2018 – An Ordinance 
Amending Title 17 of Sweet Home Municipal Code and Declaring 
a need for Expediency Clause as Amended on Exhibit A. 
 
Motion to approve Ordinance Bill No. 2 for 2018 as Amended 
on Exhibit A – An Ordinance Amending Title 17 of Sweet 
Home Municipal Code and Declaring a need for an 
Expediency Clause (Gourley/Goble) 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
 
Mayor Mahler 
Councilor Trask 
Councilor Briana 
Councilor Coleman 
Councilor Gerson 
Councilor Goble 
Councilor Gourley 

Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
 

Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
No 
Aye 
Aye 
No 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.6 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
 
 
Resolutions: 
 
Resolution No. 12 for 2018 – A 
Resolution Regarding Street 
Closures and Restrictions. 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 13 for 2018 – A 
Resolution Concerning the Oregon 
Jamboree, Park Closures and 
Restrictions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Eva Jurney 
982 Pinetop 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
The motion passed with 7Ayes and 0 Opposed. 
 
 
 
Chief Lynn introduced the request for a street closure to hold 
National Night Out event on Mimosa Circle.   
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 12 for 2018 – A Resolution 
regarding Street Closures and Restrictions (Gerson/Briana). 
Motion passed with 7 Ayes and 0 Opposed. 
 
Chief Lynn introduced the Oregon Jamboree request.  Robert 
Shamock with the Oregon Jamboree answered questions 
regarding concerns from Council.  Councilor Trask had specific 
concerns regarding fire access.  Chief Lynn stated Fire Chief 
Barringer and the Fire Marshall both reviewed the issue and will 
monitor the required 20’ fire access.  Councilor Gerson had a 
concern over process and request the Jamboree present a 
written financial agreement with the City prior to the next event.  
Councilor Goble wanted to see more efforts from volunteers 
regarding pressure washing and cleaning of sidewalks prior to 
the Jamboree.  Councilor Briana was opposed to the closing of 
Sankey Park to the public. 
 
Eva Jurney presented to the Council her concerns regarding the 
information in the staff Request for Council Action memo specific 
to budget related items that she felt should be brought up during 
the City of Sweet Home Budget process and included as a line 
item in the City Budget. 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 13 for 2018 – A Resolution 
Concerning the Oregon Jamboree, Park Closures and 
Restrictions (Trask/Goble) Motion passed with 5 Ayes and 2 
Opposed (Gerson, Briana) 

  
Committee Reports: 
 

Administration & Finance/ 
Property Committee 

 
Public/Traffic Safety 

 
Public Works 

 
 
None 
 
 
None 
 
None 
 

City Boards/Committees: 
 
         Chamber of Commerce 
 
 
 
          Fire District 
 
 

 
 
Councilor Coleman reported there were 44 entries to the 
Sportsman Holiday Parade and the parade was enjoyable to 
watch. 
 
Councilor Trask reported fire crews have joined efforts to fight fires 
on I-84 and in Grants Pass. 
 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.7 *REVISED 08/10/18



          Park & Tree Commission 
 
 
          Y.A.C.  
 
 
          Ad Hoc Committee  
          Community Healthcare 
 
         Capitol Christmas Tree 
 

Councilor Trask reported the meeting was cancelled for lack of a 
quorum.   
 
Councilor Gourley announced a Rural Youth Leadership Summit 
on August 17th. 
 
Councilor Gourley announced the Community Health Fair on 
August 18th. 
 
Councilor Coleman suggested the Council discuss the trip to D.C 
and the details. 

   Regional Boards/Committees: 
 
Area Commission on 
Transportation (ACT) 

 
COG 

 
Solid Waste Advisory 
Council (SWAC) 
 
 
 
Scott Gagner 
Sweet Home Sanitation 

 
 
None 
 
 
Councilor Gerson referred to her written report. 
 
Councilor Goble reported a committee comprised of Councilor 
Goble, Councilor Briana and Councilor Gerson met with Sweet 
Home Sanitation for a Work Session and learned more about the 
world-wide recycling crisis issue.  The committee recommended to 
the Council an 8% rate increase.   
Scott Gagner with Sweet Home Sanitation stated the proposed 8% 
increase would be effective August 1, 2018.  They asked for 
consensus of the Council of the increase, so they could be 
proactive in beginning the process to initiate the change in rates.  
Consensus of the Council was favorable Sweet Home Sanitation 
to begin the process.  The Sweet Home Sanitation Rate Increase 
will be an agenda item on the August 14, 2018 City Council 
Agenda.  Scott Gagner agreed to present to Council monthly 
updates on the situation and if the crisis resolves, rates would 
decrease accordingly. 
 

 
Mayor’s Report  
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
 
 
 

 
None 
 
City Manager Towry reported he will be out of the office the 
remainder of the week.   
City Manager Towry announced the League of Oregon Cities 
Conference is coming up in September.  If any Councilor is 
interested in attending the Council training, please let him know. 
A reminder to City Council of the upcoming November Election.  
Four positions are expiring.  Forms are on the website or can be 
picked up in the City Manager’s office to run for office.  The 
deadline is August 28th. 

 
Department Directors Reports: 

 
Finance Director 

 
Library Director 

 
 

 
 
 
Finance Director Neish reviewed reports included in the packet 
and gave a brief presentation on revenue vs expenses. 
Library Services Director Peda announced 277 children have 
signed up for the Summer Reading Program.    LSD Peda 
announced the next three programs: Michael Albert, Pop Artist; 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.8 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
 
 

Community and Economic 
Development Director 

 
 
 
 

Police Chief 
 
 
 
 

Public Works 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     City Attorney  
 
Adjournment: 
 

Didgeridoo Down Under, Australian Music; and Matthew 
Guernsey, Irish and Scottish Music. 
 
Community and Economic Development Director Jerry Sorte 
announced Angela Clegg was hired as the new Associate Planner 
for the CEDD.  Recreation planning to include the Harvest Festival 
is underway.  Planning and Building permits are keeping the 
Planning Commission and department busy. 
                                                                      
Chief Lynn update the Council on the Department’s preparation for 
the Oregon Jamboree. 
Chief Lynn stated a plan to address traffic issue in the downtown 
area is being developed and will be brought to Council. 
 
Public Works Director Springman reported on the continued raw 
water testing for Cyanotoxins with negative results.  Testing will 
continue and PWD Springman will update the Council on those 
results. 
 
Councilor Briana asked if funds could be used from the Parks 
Budget for improvements to the parking lot at Strawberry Park.  
Discussion ensued.  Mayor Mahler urged Councilor Briana to 
approach the Park and Tree Committee who would make 
recommendations of Capital Improvement Projects to the Council. 
 
Councilor Trask asked for discussion on a Charter Amendment. 
 
None 
 
With no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:29   PM. 
 

The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the July 24, 2018 regular City 
Council Meeting. 
 
 
               
                        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
              
City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.9 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 14, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Joe Graybill, City Engineer 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Approve ODOT AN01 MTEP STIP 
Project # 18853. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
ODOT AN01 MTEP for US 20: 54th 
Avenue – Riggs Hill Road (Sweet 
Home). 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
 x    MOTION 
     OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA: 
To review and approve the Amendment Number 01 Local Agency Agreement Multimodal 
Transportation Enhance Program Agreement, State Delivered Federal Project US 20: 54th 
Avenue – Riggs Hill Road (Sweet Home), City of Sweet Home. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
The City of Sweet Home has been working on the development of sidewalk access to the East 
City Limits at Riggs Hill Road for many years.  The sidewalks currently stop at 54th Ave.  
Through the Cascades West Council of Government Area Commission on Transportation 
(CWCOG ACT) and ODOT process for adding projects to the State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP), the US 20: 54th Ave – Riggs Hill Road project was approved.   
Over time the project downsized in some work scope and increased in others.  A shoreline 
multi-use path was deleted (it will be merged with a Linn County Project using a FLAP Grant), 
as well as a parking lane frontage road.  On the other hand, a sidewalk section on the south 
side of Main St. adjacent to the Murphy Wood Products Mill was included, and two mid-block 
pedestrian crossings were added to the 5-Lane section of Main St.  The two mid-block crossings 
are between 47th and 49th Avenues, and between Clark Mill Road and 40th Avenue.  These two 
crossing will be off-set directional crosswalks but will not have Flashing Beacons (RRFB) due to 
the 45MPH zone in which they are located.   
This project has been ongoing for many years starting with the 1998-1999 ODOT 2R 
resurfacing and sidewalk repair project that stopped at 54th Avenue.  At the time, it was 
considered that it was too costly to continue sidewalks up to and under the RR bridge to get to 
the lake.  Subsequent to that, plans were formulated to find a solution – and a time – to get 
connectivity to the lakeside and Shea Point areas.  Over the next decade through our ODOT 
Region 2 Area 4 ACT, applications were made to present a plan to get on the State STIP, with 
city matching funds to help that process.  That action was successful, and with some deletions 
and additions to the work area, alterations in city match obligations, and coordination with other 
ODOT funding sources for the crossings work, the project is nearly done.  This addendum to the 
original agreement will provide a much anticipated and needed improvement to the community. 
The engineering work is anticipated this year and in 2019, with construction in late 2019 - 2020. 
 
Timeline: 
 1998: Start of the project, considerations of solutions to the challenges presented. 
 2010: Layout solutions for path options. 
 2012: Application to CWCOG-ACT for 2015 STIP 
 2015: Approved to STIP by OTC 
 2016: Application & Cost Estimate Re-Scoped for project work. 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.10 *REVISED 08/10/18



 2016: Project approved to the 2018 STIP  
2017: Layout Mid-block Crossings & Mill sidewalks with alternate funding sources. 

 2018: Project approved by the OTC. 
 2018: Project Amendment to project scope & funding (attached document). 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Will the City Council support the continued goal of improvements to the transportation modes 
available to the local community by supporting cost share matches for major projects?   
 
STAKEHOLDERS: 

• State of Oregon ODOT – All project work will be within the Main St. (US 20 Santiam 
Hwy) right-of-way extents.  Roadway improvements improve the safety for drivers in the 
area. 

• City of Sweet Home residents – Citizens are provided safe access as a result of the 
project both at the east end of the city, and at the proposed mid-block crossings. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – Continued commitment to funding safe transportation 
modes throughout the city enhances the city’s ability to secure additional funding 
opportunities from state agencies.   

• Tourists and Visitors: – Access by pedestrians and bicyclists is made safer. 
  

ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
An amount of $300K has been maintained in the City Budget through the last few years, with 
the understanding that it will be eventually expended.  Funds will be processed as expenses are 
invoiced during design and construction.  The Council approved the prior MTEP Agreement on 
August 28, 2017 with the understanding that the attached amendment would be forthcoming to 
reflect changes in the cost evaluation and required match share in the project scope.  The 
previously signed agreement and this addendum – in that order – was necessary for ODOT’s 
financial methodology. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
An agreement with ODOT that provides sidewalk and bike lanes to facilitate safe transportation 
routes for local residents and visitors.  Pedestrians can access recreational opportunities around 
Foster Lake without having to walk in and alongside the roadway pavement from 54th Avenue 
eastward.  The two mid-block crossings of Main St will provide significantly safer crossings.  
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  Council could choose to move forward without approving the agreement. 
2. Adopt the Amendment 01 as approved. Council could choose to move to adopt 

Amendment Number 01 for the MTEPA US 20: 54th Avenue – Riggs Hill Road (Sweet 
Home) Project. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends Option 2, Adopt the Amendment 01 for ODOT project #18853. 
 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.11 *REVISED 08/10/18



14
41

14
45

14
49

14
51

14
55

14
59

1461

1411

1469

1415
1419

1401
1431

6011

AC Ramp Sidewalk
Terminus.

Existing 6' Pedestrian Trail,
(Dashed Line).

Proposed 12' Pedestrian Trail.
Existing 12' Pedestrian Lakeside Walkway.

Adjust to Setback
Sidewalk East to
  Lakeside Walk.

New ADA Ramps
Crossing 60th Ave.

End of Proposed Sidewalk
w/ Main St. Crossing.

New Crosswalk Marking.

Sidewalk Extension along
Existing Curb to Crossing.

New RRFB Signal
w/ ADA Ramps Crossing Main St.

Setback Sidewalk for
Planter Section along Swale.

Existing Landscaping
and Vehicle Barrier Blocks.

Rerouted Segment of Proposed Trail.

Gravel Parking Lot,
Proposed AC Surface.

Existing
Guardrail.

Proposed 6' Median Divider,
Inplace of Guardrail.

Existing 50ft wide Entrance/Exit to
Parking Lot.

Proposed Phase 2 6' Median Planter/Divider.

Exit Only for Phase2 Frontage Access Lane,
Channelized with Median Planter & Curb.

Existing (typ) Power & Light Poles
in Proposed Phase2 Frontage

Access Lane.
Relocate to South Side or Median.

Main  St, Hwy 20

60th Ave.

Phase 2 Median Planter
and 11' Frontage Lane.

Signs in Proposed Sidewalk Area.

New RRFB Signal on ADA Ramps
Crossing 60th Ave. Mid-Block,
Signage & LED Advance Sign on Curve.

End of Existing 12' Walkway,
Start of Existing 6' Walkway.

Rerouted Segment of Proposed Trail.

Rerouted Segment of Proposed Trail.

Water Quality Infiltratin Swale
& Culvert Segment

Under Lakeside Walk

Water Quality Infiltratin Swale
& Culvert Segment
Under Lakeside Walk.
Number, Size & Location as Spec.

USACOE Foster Res.
Sign.

COE Water Level Station.

Bank Protection
& Enhancement.

Bank Protection
& Enhancement.

Ex. Area Drainage Inlet
for Water Quality Swale.

ODOT Right-of-Way Line.

B  C

B  C

Br
ea

k 
Li

ne

A  B

A  B

Br
ea

k 
Li

ne

Parking Spaces
along Path.
(apx. 35)

General location of
Water Stairs Lake Access
from Multi-Use Path.

5989
5979

59735959
5933

592959215903

1414

1444

1458

1402

5918

1400

14
41

14
45

14
49

14
51

14
55

14111415
1419

1401

1428

1233

5601

5553

55515503
5501

5481

55905560
5540

5520

5497

5502

5500

5514

5540
5580

5539
5573

1364

6011
1379

1355

1311
5602

1275

5601

Adjust to Setback
Sidewalk East to
  Lakeside Walk.

New ADA Ramps
Crossing 60th Ave.

End of Proposed Sidewalk
w/ Main St. Crossing.

New Crosswalk Marking.

Sidewalk Extension along
Existing Curb to Crossing.

Sidewalk Adjustment for Bank.

New RRFB Signal
w/ ADA Ramps Crossing Main St.

Setback Sidewalk for
Planter Section along Swale.

New 6' Sidewalk.
Bank Cut w/ Trees

& Schrubs.

Drop Sidewalk for
Driveway. Setback Sidewalk

End of Proposed Sidewalk
w/ Main St. Crossing.

Level Sidewalk
Crossing under

RR Bridge Pylons.

Sidewalk Level on
Roadside Bank.

Guardrail.

Drop Sidewalk for
Driveway.Drop Sidewalk for

Driveway.

Curbside Sidewalk due
to Roadside Bank w/ Trees.Setback Sidewalk

w/ 57th Ave. Crossing
at Curbside.

Open Drainage Ditch.
End of Proposed Sidewalk
w/ 55th Ave. Crossing.

Existing Open Drainage Ditch.

Existing Fir Trees.

Culvert Segment
Under Sidewalk.

Divert Sidewalk
around Light Pole.

Setback Sidewalk
w/ 56th Ave. Crossing.

Connection to
Existing Sidewalk.

Setback
Sidewalk.

Setback Sidewalk
Adjust for Vegetation.

Sidewalk
Adjust to Bank
Slope.

Sidewalk Level Climbs
Roadway Bank.

Setback Sidewalk
on Upper Level Bank.

RR
 Bridge.

Level Sidewalk
Crossing under
RR Bridge Pylons.

Planter/Water
Quality Swale.

Planter/Water
Quality Swale.

Planter/Water
Quality Swale.

Existing Landscape.

Existing Landscaping
and Vehicle Barrier Blocks.60th Ave.

Main  St, Hwy 20

57th Ave.

56th Ave.

55th Ave.

Relocate 2x Existing
Signs in Proposed Sidewalk Area.

Ex. Area Drainage Inlet
for Water Quality Swale.

ODOT Right-of-Way Line.

Sidewalk Level Climbs
Roadway Bank.

A  B

A  B

Br
ea

k 
Li

ne

6305

1290

6281

61916099

6300
Shea Point

AC & Gravel Ramp
Area to Water Level.

Setback Sidewalk with 10' Wide Planter
Section btwn Sidewalk & Roadway.

4x Existing Driveways; Lowered
Sidewalk w/ Inline Ramp.

Approximate Edge of
Reservoir Bank.

Planter
Infiltration
Bed Area.

Restaurant
Parking Lot.

Existing 6' Pedestrian Trail.

Setback Sidewalk with 2' Wide Planter
Section due to adjacent Drainage Ditch.

Existing Driveway
& Culverts.

AC Ramp Terminus
at End of Sidewalk.

RRFB and
Crosswalk Marking.

Corner Curb
w/ ADA Ramp.

Ditch.

AC Ramp Sidewalk
Terminus.

RV Park
Parking Lot.

RV Park
Parking Lot.

Start of Ditch.

Curb ADA Ramp
& Connecting Sidewalk.

Shea Pt. Overlook Access Driveway.
Ex. Culverts
& Ditches.

Foster Lake.

Riggs Hill Rd.

Main  St, Hwy 20

Shea Pt. Overlook.

Restaurant
Parking Lot.Planter OvrFl Outlet.

Bike Lane.

Welcome to Sweet Home Sign/Planter.

Residence.

Proposed 12' Pedestrian Trail.

Optional Pathway behind Median.
Optional Median Planter Replaces Guardrail.

Phase2 Frontage Access Drive
21 Ft Wide, Entrance Only.

Phase 2 Median Planter
and 11' Frontage Lane.

Water Quality Junction Box
& Culvert Segment Under

Lakeside Walk and
Phase 2 Access Lane.

Ex. Guardrail.

Rerouted Segment of Proposed Trail. New Sidewalk Segment from Parking
Lot to Foster Lake Trail Path

Behind Hwy 20 Guardrail.

Shea Pt. Parking Lot.
Ex. Ramp Path Gate.

Visitor Information
Building.

Restroom.

Bank Protection
& Enhancement.

B  C

B  C

Br
ea

k 
Li

ne

Adjust
Scenic Byway
Sign.

General location of
Water Stairs Lake Access

from Multi-Use Path.

Optional;
8-Slip Marina Dock,

Day Use Only.

0 
   

   
  .

5 
   

   
 1

.0
   

   
 1

.5
   

   
  2

.0

D
W

G
 N

o.
/R

ev
.

C
IT

Y 
of

 S
W

EE
T 

H
O

M
E,

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n,
 1

14
0 

12
th

 A
ve

nu
e,

T:
54

1-
36

7-
69

77
, 

F:
54

1-
36

7-
64

40

D

TI
TL

E

S
IZ

E

SHEET

  
  
 L

IN
E 

IS
 2

 I
N

C
H

ES
 F

U
LL

 S
IZ

E
  
  
  
  
  
  
IF

 N
O

T 
2"

 S
C
A
LE

 A
C
C
O

R
D

IN
G

LY
S
C
A
LE

IS
S
U

E 
/ 

R
EV

.

Project Name:

     Shea Point Lakeside Recreation Zone.
Project Locations:

     Main St., Santiam Highway, US 20, from 55th Avenue to Riggs Hill Road.
Project Benefits:
     Phase 1:

3x Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon & Crosswalk Locations,
6' Sidewalk and 6' Bikelane Both Sides; 55th Ave. to 60th Ave.,

12' Multi-Use Lakeside Walk with Amenities, 60th Ave to Riggs Hill Road,
 Existing Parking Lot Rehabilitation,

    Bio-swale & Runoff Infiltration Water Quality, Beautification Planters.
     Phase 2:

Median Planter, 11' Frontage Lane, Off Highway Parking Areas,
     Bio-swale & Runoff Infiltration Water Quality, Beautification Planters.

North

S

Sweet Home

Sweet Home Vicinity Map:

g:
\e

ng
r\

C
ap

Im
pP

la
n\

R
oa

dw
ay

\S
tr

ee
t_

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t\

H
w

y2
28

_O
ak

Te
rr

-L
on

g\
En

gr
D

es
ig

n3
.d

w
g

03
-1

3-
20

12

S
H

PW
23

53
FI

LE
-D

R
W

 2
-9

1"
 =

 5
0'

11
-0

1-
20

12

2 of 2

City Limit

Foster Reservoir

City Limit

City Limit
Santiam River

Fo
st

er
 D

am

Main St. Hwy 20

Main St., Hwy 20

Main St., Hwy 20, Roadway Cross Sections.
Not to Scale.

℄
45' Right of Way to Center Line (Varies)

Hwy 20 Proposed Section.
55th Ave. to 60th Ave.

Hwy 20 Proposed East End.
60th Ave. to Shea Pt. Northside.

45' Right of Way to Center Line
12' Lane 12' Lane

Hwy 20 Proposed East End.
Near Riggs Hill Road.

⅊

⅊

⅊⅊

⅊

⅊

6' Paved
 Bike Lane

6' Gravel
 Shoulder

6' Paved
 Bike Lane

6' Gravel
 Shoulder

℄45' Right of Way to Center Line 45' Right of Way to Center Line

Ex. 12' Lane Ex. 12' Lane6' Paved
 Bike Lane

15' Center Lane

Ex.Roadside Ditch
Swale

6' Paved
 Bike Lane

6' Planter
Median

℄
45' Right of Way to Center Line (Varies to 54') 45' Right of Way to Center Line

12' Lane 12' Lane
6' Paved

 Bike Lane 15' Center Lane 6' Paved
 Bike Lane

6' Gravel
 Shoulder

New 6'
 SidewalkExisting Ditch

 East End

℄
45' Right of Way to Center Line (Varies)

Hwy 20 Existing Section.
55th Ave. to 60th Ave.

45' Right of Way to Center Line
12' Lane 12' Lane

⅊
⅊

6' Paved
 Bike Lane

6' Gravel
 Shoulder

6' Paved
 Bike Lane

6' Gravel
 ShoulderExisting Ditch East End

 Flat Shoulder West End

New 6'
 Sidewalk

New 6'
 Sidewalk

New 12'
 Sidewalk

13' Wide
One-Way Lane

New Lighting Pole
for Road & Lane Drive.

New Path Lighting.

Existing
Bank Slope.

Proposed Bank
Slope Protection,

Portions of Project Frontage.

Proposed
Water Stairs
Platforms.

Planter Height
Varies, S:1.5 ft - N:2-3 ft.

Approach
Landing to Stairs.

High Pool
Water Elevation.

Low Pool
Water Elevation.

Sidwalk Path Extends from
near 60th Ave. to Shea Pt.

Angled Parking

Main St., Hwy 20, 55th Avenue to Riggs Hill Road / Shea Pt.
Scale: 1" = 60'.

O
D

O
T 

M
ul

tim
od

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
En

ha
nc

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
.

S
w

ee
t 

H
om

e 
S
he

a 
Po

in
t 

La
ke

si
de

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Z
on

e

Ph
as

e 
1:

 R
R
FB

 a
nd

 S
id

ew
al

ks
, 

55
th

 A
ve

 t
o 

60
th

 A
ve

.
12

 f
t 

w
id

e 
M

ul
ti-

us
e 

Pa
th

 &
 W

at
er

 S
ta

ir
s 

La
ke

 A
cc

es
s,

 6
0t

h 
A
ve

 t
o 

S
he

a 
Po

in
t 

O
ve

el
oo

k.
Ph

as
e 

2:
 M

ed
ia

n 
Pl

an
te

r 
S
ep

ar
at

or
 &

 F
ro

nt
ag

e 
La

ne
 w

/ 
Pa

rk
in

g,
 L

ig
ht

in
g.

Distance Varies.

Distance Varies.

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.12 *REVISED 08/10/18

hwyr25m
Polygon

hwyr25m
Polygon

hwyr25m
Polygonal Line

hwyr25m
Line

hwyr25m
Line

hwyr25m
Line

hwyr25m
Typewritten Text
Add Sidewalk to scope with SWIP $

hwyr25m
Typewritten Text
Remove Multi-use path from Scope to fit withing budget

hwyr25m
Rectangle

hwyr25m
Rectangle



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.13 *REVISED 08/10/18

hwyr25m
Typewritten Text
Sweet Home

hwyr25m
Oval

hwyr25m
Callout
Enhance Project

hwyr25m
Oval

hwyr25m
Oval

hwyr25m
Callout
Add Mid-block Crossing near 40th and 49th with Earmark Funds.

hwyr25m
Line



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.14 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.15 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.16 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.17 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.18 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.19 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.20 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.21 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.22 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.23 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.24 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.25 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.26 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.27 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.28 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.29 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.30 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.31 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.32 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.33 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.34 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.35 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.36 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.37 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.38 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.39 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.40 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.41 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.42 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.43 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.44 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 14, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY:   
R. Snyder, City Attorney 

TITLE:   
MOU for Community Grant 
Program with Sweet Home 
Community Foundation 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Memorandum of Understanding 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
         RESOLUTION 
 X      MOTION 
__     OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:  
To finalize a Memorandum of Understanding with the Sweet Home Community Foundation to 
administer a community grant program.   
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The City Council instituted a Community Grant Program in the budget on different occasions 
throughout the years.  Over the past five grant cycles the Council has awarded: 

FISCAL YR AMOUNT 
2017/18  $4000 
2016/17  $3500 
2011/12  $2000 
2010/11  $5000 
2009/10  $1995.77 

 
The City’s Community Grant Program mirrors not only the name but the goals of the Sweet 
Home Community Foundation’s Community Grant Program.   
 
At the May 22 City Council meeting, the Council discussed and came to a consensus that it 
made sense to combine the two as awards generally went to the same applicant groups.  The 
Council felt that combining the two would help avoid redundant services and ease the burden 
for non-profit groups mostly comprised of volunteers.   
 
This MOU invites a Councilor to sit in on the Sweet Home Community Foundation’s 
deliberations for awards and allows termination of the agreement at any time. 
 
Sweet Home Community Foundation board has approved this MOU. 
 
City Attorney Snyder has approved this MOU as to form. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:    
How to administer funding allocated in the budget for community improvement projects in the 
most efficient and effective manner? 
 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City Residents. Residents are the funding source, we work with the money they invest to 
operate the community government at a level of service they determine.   

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.45 *REVISED 08/10/18



● City Councilors.  Council members are the voice of the citizens we serve.  Each member 
of this group is interested in providing the best service possible.  They must balance 
leadership with representation.  They tend to be fiscally very conservative. 

● Management Team. The City is not built to be a granting organization and track the 
spending or regulate the validity of the spending of non-profit groups.   

● Volunteer Fire Fighters Association. Volunteer group accepting responsibility for 
emergency response to accidents, fires and kittens stuck in trees.  They answer to a full 
time Fire Chief and Assistant Fire Chief.  Their influence and connections to the 
community can make them a powerful ally. 

● Local Non-Profit Organizations.  Local organizations comprised of community members 
and business owners.  These organizations tend to have missions related to improving 
the quality of life in the community and are lead with volunteer labor. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

1. Sweet Home Community Foundation – By passing dedicated funds to the Sweet Home 
Community Foundation you increase the size of their grant program while decreasing 
the work on the non-profit groups and staff, crating efficiencies for all involved. 

 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
A tool to fairly distribute funds for community improvement projects in an efficient manner. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  Continue to have staff administer the Community Grant Program and local 
nonprofits will need to apply to both the City and Sweet Home Community Foundation.   

2. Approve the MOU with the Sweet Home Community Foundation to administer a 
Community Grant Program as presented.  This will enable staff to forward the allocated 
budget for the City Community Grant Program to the Sweet Home Community 
Foundation to administer the grant, saving local volunteers time and effort while finding 
efficiencies for staff. 

3. Suggest changes to the MOU.  Council can suggest changes to the proposed MOU.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Staff recommends Council choose option #2 and make a motion to Approve the MOU 
with the Sweet Home Community Foundation to administer a Community Grant Program as 
presented.   
 
Staff will begin to work with the Sweet Home Community Foundation for front end information 
distribution and help to advertise.  We will also follow up to ensure a Councilor is able to be 
present during the deliberations of the awards and get information for Council post award. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.46 *REVISED 08/10/18



                                          
Background: 
 
The Sweet Home Community Foundation is a 501 C (3) nonprofit organization that administers charitable 
funds received through gifts and bequests from individuals, businesses and other organizations. SHCF provides 
grants to qualified organizations within the community.  In addition, SHCF assists local ad hoc groups with 
fundraising and project administration for worthy endeavors.  
 
SHCF’s mission is to “Improve the Quality life in the Sweet Home Community.” A primary part of this 
mission is to build and maintain a long term endowment fund that will benefit the community in future years.   
 
The City of Sweet Home, a municipal corporation, regularly budgets for and distributes monetary grants to 
community organizations using criteria consistent with the above stated mission of the Sweet Home Community 
Foundation.  The City, in order to facilitate efficient use of these funds and to eliminate redundant funding, 
agrees to transfer these funds to SHCF for current and future community improvement and/or economic 
development within the City of Sweet Home. 
 
Agreement: 
 
This agreement is entered into between the Sweet Home Community Foundation, herein referred to as “The 
Foundation” and the City of Sweet Home, herein referred to as “The City”. 
 

The City agrees to send to SHCF any funds budgeted for its Community Grant Program. 
 
The Foundation agrees to utilize these funds, along with other financial resources, to fund its 
annual Sweet Home Community Grant Cycle 
 
The City and The Foundation each agree to work together in a spirit of cooperation to address the 
goals common to both entities. A City representative is invited to attend the Foundation grant 
evaluation process in an advisory role. 

 
 This agreement may be terminated upon written notice by one party to the other. 
 
 
 
________________________________ ________  
Sweet Home Community Foundation Date 
Robert Burford, President 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ ________ ________________________________ ________  
Greg Mahler, Mayor Date  Ray Towry, City Manager   Date 
 

Memorandum of 
Understanding 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.47 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 14, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Ray Towry, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
City of Sweet Home Charter 
Amendment Review 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
City of Sweet Home Charter 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
     MOTION 
 X    OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA: 
Staff is seeking a clear consensus from the City Council as to if the City of Sweet Home should 
move forward with the Charter revision process? 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
In early 2014, a Charter Review Committee was established with the purpose to review and 
make recommended changes to the 1986 City of Sweet Home Charter.  Those 
recommendations included: simplified and gender-neutral language; removal of previous 
repealed sections no longer applicable; renumbered sections; removal of Charter Amendments 
no longer applicable and to conform to current law; revisions of Council voting requirements for 
actions of Council; removal of sections on damage suits and debts limits to use State law.  
Those were approved by voters during the November 2014 General Election. 
 
Many elements of the current City Charter are dated practices. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
There is a feeling the City of Sweet Home’s Charter has some dated elements within it that are 
not considered best practices, are cumbersome, inefficient and may not conform to current state 
law.  Updating the City Charter to incorporate best practices as well as meets the Council’s goal 
to have an effective and efficient local government would serve the best interests of the 
community. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS: 

• City of Sweet Home Residents – Residents have asked for a more efficient and effective 
local government.  The Charter is not always conducive to that.   

• City of Sweet Home City Council – Council has set a goal to have a more efficient and 
effective local government.  There is a feeling among some that specific provisions of 
the Charter runs contrary to that. 

• City of Sweet Home City Staff – Staff strives to be effective and efficient.   
  

ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
Changes to the current Charter must be authorized by a majority vote of the Sweet Home 
Citizens.  Cost to add a Charter Amendment to the General Election Ballot are estimated to be 
+/- $15,000.  Additional Public Notice advertising fees, administrative fees and staffing time will 
be necessary. 
 
In addition to citizens placing a bill (passed by a governing body) on the ballot using the 
referendum process, the local governing body may directly refer a change in ordinance to the 
ballot, for voters to adopt or reject. 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.48 *REVISED 08/10/18



The governing body must refer all changes to adopted charters, so voters may adopt or reject 
the amendment.   
 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
A Charter that allows efficient and effective local government while still balancing the need for 
transparency in process. 
 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  Council could choose to not pursue a Charter revision.   
2. Direct staff to research necessary steps to begin Charter revisions by consensus. 

Council could choose to direct staff to research necessary steps, time lines, and 
processes and bring a full report back to the Council.  

3. Create a Charter Review Committee by consensus. Council support the Mayor creating 
an Ad Hoc Charter Review Committee to suggest changes to the Charter and 
recommend a Revision Process by consensus. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends option #3, By consensus, support the Mayor to create a Charter Review 
Committee.  
 
The Mayor can designate up to three Councilors to work on the committee and appoint an 
additional three to four members of the community to: 

1) Review the Sweet Home Charter, other charters from other cities, study how the Sweet 
Home Charter supports operations and then decide if a Charter revision is needed, 

2) Propose changes to the Sweet Home Charter, 
3) Make a recommendation to the City Council on a process for the revision of the Sweet 

Home Charter which would culminate in a local ballot measure. 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.49 *REVISED 08/10/18



 

CITY OF SWEET HOME 

SWEET HOME, OREGON 

 

CHARTER  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Completely Revised January 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.50 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home Charter  
Completely Revised August 2014  

 

1 

 

AN ACT TO REVISE THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF SWEET HOME, LINN COUNTY, OREGON.  

 

Be it enacted by the City of Sweet Home, Linn County, Oregon:  

 

 

CHAPTER I 

NAME, BOUNDARIES, POWERS AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

Section 1. Name and Boundaries.  The City of Sweet Home, Linn County, Oregon shall, upon the taking 

effect of this charter, continue to be a municipal corporation under the name of the City of Sweet Home. 

  

The city includes all territory within its boundaries as they now exist or are legally modified. The city will 

maintain as a public record an accurate and current description of the boundaries.  

 

Section 2. Powers of the City.   Subject only to limitations provided in this charter, the city shall have all 

rights, powers, privileges and immunities now or hereafter granted either expressly or impliedly to 

municipalities by the constitution, statues and common law of the state, as fully as though each of such 

rights, powers, privileges and immunities were specifically stated in this charter.  

 

The enumeration of or reference to particular rights, powers, privileges and immunities in this charter 

shall not be construed to be exclusive. This charter shall be liberally construed to the end that the city 

may have all necessary powers for the conduct of its municipal affairs, as contemplated by the municipal 

home rule provision of the constitution and laws of the state.  

 

 

CHAPTER II  

FORM OF GOVERNMENT  

 

Section 3. Council and Mayor.   Except as otherwise provided in this charter, all powers of the city shall 

be vested in a council of seven members nominated and elected from the city at large.  

At each biennial general election, four councilors shall be elected. The three receiving the highest 

number of votes shall each hold office for four years, and the one receiving the number of votes next to 

the three highest shall hold office for two years. Tie votes shall be determined by lot.  

  

At its first meeting of the new term after each biennial general election, the council shall elect from its 

membership a chairperson  who shall be mayor for a term of two years.  

 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.51 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home Charter  
Completely Revised August 2014  

 

2 

 

The mayor and councilors in office at the time of adoption of this charter shall continue in office until 

the expiration of their respective terms, with powers and duties as provided in this charter.  

 

Section 4. City Attorney, Manager and Municipal Judge.  The council shall appoint and keep in office a 

city attorney, city manager who shall also serve as the city recorder, and a municipal judge, who shall 

hold office subject to the discretion of the council and may be removed by the council with or without 

cause.  

 

Section 5. Other City Officers and Employees.   The city manager shall appoint a treasurer, a chief of 

police and such other officers and employees of the city as the council deems necessary, and may 

remove any of them at any time with or without cause. The council may by resolution require any officer 

to fill and perform the duties of two or more offices.  

 

Section 6. Salaries.  The council shall fix the compensation of all city officers and employees. 

 

Section 7. Bonds of Officers, Employees and Contractors.  If ordinances require, every person 

appointed to an office or place of public employment in the city or entering into a contact with the city 

shall give the city a bond for the faithful performance of his/her duties. Nothing in this section, however, 

shall detract from the effect of Section 20.   

 

 

CHAPTER III 

ELECTIONS 

 

Section 8. Regulation of Elections.  Except as this charter provides otherwise and as the council provides 

otherwise by ordinance relating to elections, the general law of the state shall apply to the conduct of all 

city elections, recounts of the returns therefrom, and contest thereof. Any qualified elector who has 

resided in the city at least one year may be nominated for the council or for mayor.  

 

Section 9. Special Elections.  The council may by resolution or ordinance order a special election and 

provide the time, manner and means for holding it. At least 10 days notice shall be given of each special 

election.  

 

Section 10. Commencement of Terms of Office.   The term of office of each person elected to office at a 

regular city election shall commence on the first Monday of January following the election.  In the case 

of an election to fill an existing vacancy in office, the person elected shall enter upon his/her office 

immediately.  

 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.52 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home Charter  
Completely Revised August 2014  

 

3 

 

Section 11. Oath of Office.  Each officer, before entering upon the duties of his/her office, shall take an 

oath that he/she will support the constitution and laws of the United States and the state, and that 

he/she will faithfully perform the duties of his/her office.  

 

 

CHAPTER IV 

VACANCIES 

 

Section 12. Vacancies in Office Generally.  An office shall be deemed vacant upon the incumbent’s 

death, insanity, conviction of a felony, resignation, removal from the city or absence from the city for a 

period of 30 days without the consent of the council in case of the mayor, manager, municipal judge or 

councilor, or without the consent of the manager in case of officers appointed by the manager; upon the 

incumbent’s ceasing to possess the qualifications necessary for office; or upon the failure of the person 

elected or appointed to an office to qualify therefore on or before the day of his/her term of office 

commences; and in case of the mayor or a councilor, upon his/her absence from meetings of the council 

for 60 days without the consent of the council.  

 

Section 13. Manner in Which Vacancies Shall Be Filled.   Vacancies in office filled by election or by 

appointment by the council shall be filled by appointment by the council at any regular or special 

meeting, and the person so appointed shall serve the full unexpired term and until his/her successor is 

chosen and qualified. Vacancies in offices filled by appointment by the manager shall be filled by 

appointment by the manager. An officer appointed to fill a vacancy shall within 24 hours after his/her 

appointment qualify for office, and unless he/she does so, the office shall be considered vacant. During 

the temporary absence of any officer from the city for any cause his/her office may be filled temporarily 

in the manner provided for filling vacancies in office.  

 

 

CHAPTER V 

THE COUNCIL 

 

Section 14. Council Meetings.   The council shall provide for the time and place of its regular meetings 

and adopt rules and regulations for the government of its members and proceedings. It shall hold at 

least one regular meeting each month. Special meetings of the council may be called by the mayor, 

either upon his/her own motion or upon the request of at least three members of the council, and held 

at any time, upon verbal or written notice to all members of the council then in the city. Special 

meetings of the council may also be held by the common consent of all members of the council.  

 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.53 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home Charter  
Completely Revised August 2014  

 

4 

 

Section 15. Quorum. A majority of council members is a quorum to conduct business, but a smaller 

number may meet and adjourn from time to time to compel the attendance of absent members in the 

manner provided by ordinance. The council shall keep a journal of its proceeding, and on the call of two 

members shall the yeas and nays to be taken and entered in the journal upon any question before it 

except a motion to adjourn. The proceedings of the council shall be public.  

 

Section 16. Mayor’s Duties at Council Meetings.   The Mayor shall be chairperson of the council and 

shall preside over its deliberations. He/she shall have authority to preserve order, enforce the rules of 

council and determine the order of business, subject to the rules of the council. He/she may vote as a 

councilor.  

 

Section 17. President Pro Tem.   At its first meeting in the new term after each biennial election, the 

council shall elect from its membership, a president pro tem for a term of two years. The president pro 

tem shall perform the duties of the mayor in the absence of the mayor.  

 

Section 18. Vote Required.   The concurrence of a majority of a quorum shall be required to determine 

any matter before the council except as provided otherwise in this charter.  

 

 

CHAPTER VI 

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE CITY OFFICERS 

 

Section 19. Mayor.  The mayor shall appoint the various committees provided for under the rules of the 

council or otherwise and shall fill all vacancies in committees of the council from that body. He/she shall 

sign all ordinances passed by the council within three days after their passage. He/she shall sign all 

instruments and writings authorized by this charter, the laws of the state or the council. In the absence 

of the mayor, such instruments shall be signed by the president pro tem of the council. All orders on the 

city treasurer shall be signed by two of the three following named city officers, being the mayor, the city 

manager and the city treasurer.  

  

Section 20. Manager.   

 (a) Qualifications. The manager shall be the administrative head of the city government. 

He/she shall be chosen by the council without regard to political consideration and solely with reference 

to his/her executive and administrative qualifications.  

Before entering upon his/her duties, the manager shall file with the mayor an official bond for faithful 

performance thereof, payable to the city in the sum of $10,000,  the premium of which shall be paid by 

the city. The bond shall be to the satisfaction of the council, and the approval of the mayor shall be 

endorsed thereon.  

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.54 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home Charter  
Completely Revised August 2014  

 

5 

 

 (b)  Term.  The manager shall be appointed for an indefinite term, but may be removed with 

a vote of four members of the council.  Upon any vacancy occurring in the office of the manager 

subsequent to the first appointment hereunder, the council shall, at its next meeting, adopt a resolution 

of its intention to appoint a manager, and no such appointment shall be made until at least four weeks 

after adoption of the resolution. The council shall appoint a manager within a reasonable time after the 

adoption of the resolution of intention.  

 (c)  Powers and duties. The powers and duties of the manager shall be:  

  (1)  To see that all ordinances are enforced. 

  (2) To appoint all heads of departments and other city officers and employees, and 

 remove them at pleasure, and to have general supervision and control over them, except as 

 otherwise provided in this charter. All such appointments shall be made upon the basis of merit 

 and fitness alone. 

  (3) To see that the provisions of all franchises, leases, contracts, permits and  

 privileges granted by the city are fully observed, and to report to the council any violations 

 thereof.  

  (4) To attend all meetings of the council unless excused therefrom by three 

 councilors or by the mayor.   

  (5) To act as purchasing agent for all departments of the city. All purchases shall be 

 made in accordance with the council approved city purchasing policy. 

  (6) To examine or cause to be examined, without notice, the official conduct of any 

 officer, assistant, deputy, clerk or employee in any of the departments of city government, 

 except councilors.  

  (7) To keep the council advised to the needs of the city.  

  (8) To prepare and submit to the budget committee the annual budget estimate and 

 such reports as may be required by that body.  

  (9) To submit to the council an annual report of all departments of the city and such 

 other reports as the council may require.    

  (10) To prepare or cause to be prepared plans and specification for work coming under 

 his/her supervision which the council orders, and to provide such plans and specifications in 

 sufficient number and in ample time to give full opportunity for all contractors who desire to bid 

 thereon to do so.  

  (11) To have control, subject to such ordinances as may from time to time be adopted, 

 for all public utilities owned or operated by the city.   

  (12) To have general supervision over all city property and its use by the public or city 

 employees.  

  (13) To appoint such advisory boards as he/she may deem desirable to advise  on, 

 assist him/her in his/her work; but the members of such boards will receive no compensation as 

 such board members.  

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.55 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home Charter  
Completely Revised August 2014  

 

6 

 

  (14) To perform such other duties as may be required by this charter or as the council 

 may require of him/her.  

  (15) From time to time, in order to facilitate the prompt, economical and efficient 

 dispatch of city business, to organize the work of the departments under his/her control, to 

 assign assistants, deputies, and employees from any office or department of the city government 

 to perform work or service in connection with any other office or department thereof, or to work 

 in more than one said offices or departments thereof; provided, that no such change shall affect 

 the powers or duties of any elective officer to the city.  

  (16) To serve as the city recorder and such to be clerk of the council, keep an accurate 

 record of its proceedings in a book provided for that purpose, and countersign all instruments 

 and writings by this charter or by the laws of the state or the city.  

 (d) Seats at Council Meetings. The manager and such other officers of the city as may be 

designated by vote of the council shall be entitled to seats with the council, but shall have no vote 

therein. The manager shall have the right to take part in the discussion of all matters coming before 

council.  

 (e) Manager Pro Tem. During the absence of the manager from the city, during his/her 

temporary disability to act as manager, or during the interim when the council is seeking a manager, the 

council shall appoint a manager pro tem who shall possess the powers and discharge the duties of the 

manager during such absence or disability only; provided, however that a manager pro tem shall have 

no authority to appoint or remove any city officer or employee except with the approval of five 

members of the council. No manager pro tem shall hold his/her position for more than six months. No 

appointment of a manager pro tem shall be consecutively renewed.  

In case of the absence of the manager or the manager pro tem from council meetings, the council shall 

appoint a clerk of the council pro tem.  

 (f)  Interference in Administration. No member of the council shall in any manner, directly or 

indirectly, by suggestion or otherwise, attempt to influence or coerce the manager in the making of any 

appointment or removal, or the purchase of supplies, or attempt to exact any promise relative to any 

appointment from any candidate for manager, or discuss, directly or indirectly, with any such candidate, 

the matter of appointments to any city office or employment. Any violation of the foregoing provisions 

of this section shall work a forfeiture of the office of the offending member of council, may be removed 

therefrom by the council or by any court of competent jurisdiction; provided, however, that nothing 

herein contained shall be construed as prohibiting the council, while in open session, discussing with or 

suggesting to the manager, fully and freely, anything pertaining to city affairs and for the best interest of 

the city. Neither the manager nor any person in the employ of the city shall take any part in securing, or 

shall contribute any money toward, the nomination or election of any candidate for the municipal office.  

 (g) Ineligible Persons. No person related to the manager by consanguinity or affinity within the 

third degree shall hold any appointive office or employment with the city.  

 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.56 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home Charter  
Completely Revised August 2014  

 

7 

 

Section 21. Municipal Judge.   The municipal judge shall be the judicial officer of the city. He/she shall 

hold within the city a court known as the municipal court for the City of Sweet Home, Linn County, 

Oregon. The court shall be open for the transaction of the judicial business at times specified by the 

council. All areas within the city shall be within the territorial jurisdiction of the court. The municipal 

judge shall exercise original and exclusive jurisdiction of all offenses defined or authorized by ordinances 

of the city. He/she shall have authority to issue process for the arrest of any person accused of an 

offense against the ordinance of the city, to commit any such person to jail or admit him/her to bail 

pending trial, to issue subpoenas, to compel witnesses to appear and testify in court on the trail of any 

cause before him/her, to compel obedience to such subpoenas, to issue any process necessary to carry 

into effect the judgments of the court, and to punish witnesses and others for contempt of court. When 

not governed by ordinances or this charter, all proceedings in the municipal court for the violation of the 

city ordinance shall be governed by the applicable general laws of the state governing justices of the 

peace and justice courts.  

 Notwithstanding this section of this charter, the council may provide for the transfer of power 

and duties of the municipal court to the appropriate state court of the State of Oregon.  

 

Section 22. Other Officers. The council shall fix the powers and duties of all appointive offices other than 

those provided for in this charter.  

 

CHAPTER VII 

ORDINANCES 

 

Section 23. Enacting Clause.   The enacting clause of all ordinances hereafter passed shall be “The City of 

Sweet Home does ordain as follows.” 

 

Section 24. Introduction, Reading and Passage.   Every ordinance shall be fully and distinctly read in 

open council meeting on one day and shall be read by title only on two different days previous to being 

put upon its final passage provided that the council may have the ordinance fully and distinctly read at 

any reading thereof; provided, however, that any ordinance may be introduced and read the first time at 

any meeting and may upon a unanimous vote of all the members of council present at the meeting be 

read a second time by title only and placed upon its passage at the meeting held on a separate and 

successive day. 

 

Section 25. When Ordinances Take Effect and Publication Thereof.  Each ordinance passed by the 

council shall take effect on the thirtieth day after its passage; provided, that when the council deems it 

expedient or in case of emergency, an ordinance may provide a different time when it shall take effect, 

or that it shall take effect immediately. All ordinances shall be posted for 10 days after passage in three 

or more conspicuous places in the city.  

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.57 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home Charter  
Completely Revised August 2014  

 

8 

 

 

CHAPTER VIII 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS  

 

Section 26. Power of Condemnation and Purchase.   The city shall have power to acquire by purchase, 

gift, devise or condemnation any property either within or without its corporate boundaries for any 

municipal purpose, for the purpose of (a) protecting, preserving and facilitating an improvement or (b) 

bringing about such development of property along or in the vicinity of an improvement as will make 

such development harmonious with and adjusted to the improvement or (c) any combination of such 

purposes; to acquire by condemnation property in excess of that needed for the actual improvement 

and to sell or lease such excess property with building and use restrictions and conditions to make its 

development harmonious with and adjusted to adjacent public improvements. The necessity for the 

taking of any property by the City of Sweet Home shall be determined by the council and shall be 

declared by a resolution which shall describe such property as nearly as may be and stating the use to 

which it is to be devoted. The city shall have power to provide for the payment of all or any part of the 

cost of land or other property acquired for public use of the construction, reconstruction, repair, 

operation or maintenance of any structure or work in the nature of a public facility or improvement, 

including a public utility and of any other public work or service, by levying and collecting special 

assessments upon property specially benefited.  

 

Section 27. Special Assessment.   The method and procedure for determining the amount of the 

assessments, the spread and apportionment of the amount of the assessments, and the boundary and 

location of the property, lots, district or area to be assessed; for the making and approval of the plans 

and specifications; for the notices of property owners and other interested parties; for the hearings, for 

the composition, organization and procedure of boards of revision or appraisal; for the levy of the 

assessments; for the creation of a lien; and for any and all other determinations, steps, measures, 

resolutions, ordinances and actions in relation to the assessments shall be governed by either (a) the 

provisions of the special assessment statutes of the state or (b) the provisions of a general ordinance 

setting forth such method and procedure, which general ordinance may be enacted by council and shall 

be subject to amendment or repeal.  

 

Section 28. Improvements.   Street, sewer, sidewalk and such other improvements as may be deemed 

necessary by the council may be made on the motion of the council or on petition of a majority of the 

property owners interested. Remonstrance of two-thirds of the front footage of property owners 

concerned shall operate to defeat such motion of petition and the same may not again be considered by 

the council for a period of six months.  

 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.58 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home Charter  
Completely Revised August 2014  

 

9 

 

Section 29. Savings Clause. All ordinances, resolutions, policies, procedures, contracts and regulations 

heretofore passed by the city, in force when this charter takes effect, if not inconsistent with it, shall 

remain in full force after it takes effect and until they are amended or repealed by the council.  

 

Section 30. City to Retain Rights and Be Subject to Liabilities in Existence at Time This Charter Takes 

Effect.   No right vested in the city and no liability which it has incurred under this charter, prior charters, 

and any revisions and amendments thereof and laws of the state shall be impaired or discharged by 

adoption of this charter, except as this charter otherwise provides.  

 

Section 31. Limitations on Indebtedness.  City indebtedness may not exceed the debt limits imposed 

by state law. A charter amendment is not required to authorize city indebtedness.  

 

Section 32. Repealing Clause.  All charter provisions adopted before this charter takes effect are 

repealed.  

 

Section 33. Severability.  The terms of this charter are severable. If any provision is held invalid by a 

court, the invalidity does not affect any other part of the charter.   

 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.59 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 14, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Robert Snyder, City Attorney 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Solid Waste Rates 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Ord 1117 & Ord 1261 
Sweet Home Sanitation Handout 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
 x    ORDINANCE 
     RESOLUTION 
     MOTION 
__         OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA: 
An ordinance that sets forth the rate structure for solid waste. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
Waste Connection Inc. (Sweet Home Sanitation) the current providers of solid waste services in 
Sweet Home is requesting a rate increase to help cover the increased cost of recycling.  They 
are asking for an 8% raise in the rates as of August 1, 2018.  A committee of three council 
members has reviewed this rate increase and recommended that it be approved.  This 8% 
increase is based on extraordinary circumstances in the rising cost of recycling. 
In ordinance 1261 of 2017, the last ordinance on rate changes, the parties to the franchise 
agreed to provide for automatic rate changes by using the Portland-Salem CPI.  This CPI is no 
longer available, and the parties need to choose a new CPI.  The franchisee has suggested 
using the Consumer Price Index – CPI-U West B/C, which as stated in its handout samples 
smaller urban areas in the Western States. 
Section 6.1 in Sweet Home Ordinance 1117 sets forth that any rate changes shall be by 
ordinance.  Sweet Home Ordinance 1261 provides for an automatic annual rate adjustment.  
Ordinance 1117 process calls for a rate change to go through the ordinance process of a 
reading in full and two by title in at least two separate public Council meetings.  The proposed 
ordinance would change the Ordinance 1117 rate change process to a resolution (for 
extraordinary circumstances cases) thereby requiring a resolution by City Council at a City 
Council public meeting.  Annual changes in rates would remain automatic by use of the CPI. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Should the City pass an ordinance to increase the solid waste rate as set forth in Exhibit A for 
recycling and should the City as part of that ordinance incorporate therein an annual CPI 
adjustment rate structure using the Consumer Price Index – CPI-U West B/C, and finally; should 
the City Council amend the process for rate changes in extraordinary circumstances from an 
ordinance process to a resolution process? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS: 

• City of Sweet Home Residents - Recycling and the need for it as valued by the 
community. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – A Committee reviewed the rate increase matter and 
referred it to City Council for its consideration with a recommendation of approval.  
Council is entrusted to make decisions that do the most good for the most people for the 
longest period of time. 
 

ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
The world recycling market is changing, and the cost of recycling has increased.  Under the 
current ordinance either party can request a change in the rate when faced with extraordinary 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.60 *REVISED 08/10/18



circumstances.  The City Council must decide what it needs to do about the raising cost of 
recycling and the increase in the rate accomplices that for now. 
The automatic CPI adjustment is one way to structure the rate process that gives the parties a 
rate structure that will be adjusted each year to reflect that year’s changes in the CPI.  
A change from the ordinance to a resolution process would make it a process that would allow 
for a quicker adjustment to market changes in the future for extraordinary circumstances. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
A palatable and predictable rate structure that is transparent and fair to all parties, while 
ensuring the needs of the community are met. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Approve Ordinance Bill No.3 for 2018 - Council approve the 8% increase as of August 1, 
2018 as set forth in Exhibit A attached to Ordinance Bill No. 3 for 2018.  

2. Approve the CPI Change to use Consumer Price Index – CPI-U West B/C – Council 
approve the CPI Change to use Consumer Price Index – CPI-U West B/C as in 
Ordinance Bill No. 3 for 2018. 

3. Approve Changes in Process – Council approve the change from ordinance process to 
resolution process for rate changes in extraordinary circumstances.  

4. Set a Different Rate – The Council could set a different rate and upon different terms. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends option 1, 2, and 3.  If the proposed ordinance meets with City Council 
approval, read it in full for its first reading at the council meeting and if the whole council present 
is in agreement, read it a second time by title only.  Finally, decide when the third and final 
reading will be at the next regular meeting of the Council or before so that the ordinance goes 
into effect as soon as possible. 
 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.61 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.62 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.63 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.64 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.65 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.66 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.67 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.68 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.69 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.70 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.71 *REVISED 08/10/18



 

 

Date: 5/22/18 
 
To: Ray Towry 
 City of Sweet Home 
 1140 12th Avenue 
 Sweet Home, OR 97386 
 
RE: Request for Recycling Rate Adjustment 
 
 
Mr. Towry,  
  
As we have been discussing over the past several months, the China-induced recycling market 
crisis has become an overwhelming burden for solid waste companies across Linn County and 
the West Coast. Sweet Home Sanitation is certainly no exception and has felt the full weight of 
this burden. To recap, roughly 12 months ago (June 2017)  Pioneer Recycling paid us 
approximately $30 per ton for mixed recycling.  Starting last September, exporters began to 
increase pricing in the event that China would follow through with their ban.  Costs continued 
to increase as material recovery facilities (MRFs) slowed down their processing lines and 
added personnel to improve quality.  China imposed their effective ban on January 1, and they 
have not flinched so far.  MRF’s have cleaned the material up enough to keep it moving to 
alternative Asian destinations and even some domestic mill applications.  The biggest source of 
contamination has proven to be non-program plastics and, simply put, household garbage that 
has never been allowed in the program. As of - May 2018, Pioneer charges us $84 per ton for 
the same material they paid us $30 per ton a year ago.  When transportation and handling costs 
are factored in, the cost per ton rose from an average of $26.04/ton in 2017 to a current cost of 
$118.47/ton, an increase of 355%.  
 
To isolate the impact of the recycling issue on our business, we borrowed a single-item rate 
making tool used by the Washington State Utilities and Transportation Commission most often 
used to determine the impact of spikes in fuel costs in between general rate filings.   Adapting it 
for recycling, the methodology starts with the baseline recycling expense as a percentage of 
revenue, which for Sweet Home was 3.3%.  That percentage is multiplied by the 355% increase 
in recycling expense to arrive at the 11.76% change in revenue required to recover the 
increased cost.  Assuming we process the same volume of mixed recycling as we did in 2017, 
our additional expense per year to provide recycling services is $257,251.   
  
With the potential of double digit rate increases, we believe it’s important to present options.  
There is an economic component of the State’s definition of a recyclable material.  If it costs 
more to recycle the material than to dispose of it in a landfill, the material fails the economic 
test.  In 2017, the economic test clearly defined our commingle mix as recyclable. Commingle 
now fails the test, and landfilling is an option, subject to the DEQ’s concurrence with our 
conclusion.   For comparison purposes using the same model, landfilling the City’s mixed  

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.72 *REVISED 08/10/18



 

 
recycling would realize an increased cost of $114,550 for the year. These costs would require a 
5.23% rate increase.  
 
Our Exhibit entitled Pro Forma Rate Adjustments Excluding Other Factors contains examples of 
the commodity-induced increase for key sample rates under both the recycling and landfilling 
options.    
  
While the big news is the 355% increase in recycle costs, we continue to experience cost 
increases in other parts of our business, including labor and truck operating expenses.  We are 
proposing this rate increase be included with our annual price adjustment for the year effective 
July 1st. 2017’s Portland-Salem CPI, which our annual adjustment is tied to, was 4.2%. This 
percentage will be added to our recycling adjustment costs, creating an overall price 
adjustment of 15.96% to continue recycling, and 9.43% to landfill the recycling. 
 
We understand it is never the intent of the City to landfill recycling, however the extent of this 
recycling crisis is severe and unprecedented.  The City must decide its priorities.  Most Oregon 
communities have elected to retain their recycling programs, and we at Sweet Home Sanitation 
believe that recycling continues to add long term environmental benefits that aren’t currently 
reflected in its cost.  We encourage the City to continue to recycle.  Regardless of the City’s 
decision, we believe that a review of recycling prices in 6 months is important to determine if 
rate or system adjustments are necessary.  Accordingly, we recommend that language be 
incorporated that would allow either party the right to request a sooner rate adjustment to 
follow any rapid, drastic market fluctuations. 
  
On another note: the Portland-Salem Consumer Price Index has been discontinued by the 
Bureau of Labor and Statistics (BLS). We are O.K. this year with using it as it wasn’t eliminated 
until January 2018, but we will need to discuss and agree on an alternate index.  We believe the 
most relevant surviving index is the CPI-U West B/C, which samples smaller urban areas in the 
Western States.  
  
You had mentioned the other day that a work session might prove helpful in reviewing and 
discussing this proposal with council. I can and will make myself available any time that works 
for the council. I look forward to hearing back from you very soon. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 

 

Scott Gagner 

Sweet Home Sanitation 

Office: 541-367-2535 

1325 18th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR 97386 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.73 *REVISED 08/10/18



Changes to Solid Waste Franchise Ordinance No. 1117 
 
6.1 Rates for service shall be as in the attached Exhibit A, by this reference hereby 

incorporated in this Ordinance. Changes in rates shall be made only by an ordinance 
amending Exhibit A. Rates for service set after those set in Sweet Home Ordinance No. 
______ shall be set by City Council resolution except for the automatic annual 
adjustment as stated below. 

 
6.1.1 In addition to the foregoing, the rates for service described above shall be automatically 

adjusted annually, (first effective July 1, 2018) and each year thereafter during the term 
of this Ordinance based on the annual average increase or decrease, if any, of the 
Consumer Price Index-CPI-U W West B/C, as published by the United States Bureau of 
Labor Statistics (http: //data. bls. gov) (the "CPI") during the most recent twelve (12) 
month period ending no later than June 30 of the then current year. Thus, if the CPI 
increased 2% from the previous 12 month average of 2018-2019 then the rates for 
service would automatically increase 2% effective as of July 1, 2019. In addition to the 
above rate structure either party to the franchise can request increases or decreases in 
the rates based on extraordinary circumstances. 

 
6.2 The franchisee shall not give any rate preference to any person, locality, or type of solid 

waste stored, collected, transported, disposed of, or resource recovered. This Section 
6.2 shall not prohibit uniform classes of rates based upon length of haul, type or quantity 
of solid waste handled, and location of customers so long as those rates are reasonable 
based upon costs of the particular service and are approved by the Council in the same 
manner as other rates, nor shall it prevent any person from volunteering service at 
reduced costs for a charitable, community, civic, or benevolent purpose. 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.74 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.75 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.76 *REVISED 08/10/18



Sweet Home Sanitation

City of Sweet Home - Proposed Rates
8.00%

7/1/2017 7/1/2018 8/1/2018

(4.2% CPI) (8% Recycling)

Residential Service:
Cans and Carts
1-20 gallon weekly $11.60 $12.10 $13.00

1-35 gallon weekly $23.40 $24.40 $26.25

1-90 gallon weekly $28.85 $30.05 $32.35
Other Services
Yard Debris Only $5.25 $5.45 $5.90

Recycling Only $5.25 $5.45 $5.90

Recall Fee $9.35 $9.75 $10.50

Access Fee $6.15 $6.40 $6.90

Commercial Service:
90 gallon cart      $32.15 $33.50 $36.05

35 gallon cart    $23.45 $24.45 $26.30

1 Yard Container
Rental $53.05 $55.30 $59.50

Once per Month $71.40 $74.40 $80.10

Every Other Week $89.60 $93.35 $100.55

Weekly $114.95 $119.80 $128.95

2X per Week $207.05 $215.75 $232.30

Extra Dump $31.85 $33.20 $35.75
1.5 Yard Container
Rental $53.05 $55.30 $59.50

Once per Month $76.50 $79.70 $85.85

Every Other Week $101.85 $106.15 $114.30

Weekly $147.90 $154.10 $165.95

2X per Week $254.70 $265.40 $285.75

Extra Dump $37.75 $39.35 $42.35

2 Yard Container

Rental $53.05 $55.30 $59.50

Once per Month $89.60 $93.35 $100.55

Every Other Week $115.00 $119.85 $129.05

Weekly $182.30 $189.95 $204.55

2X per Week $328.10 $341.90 $368.15

Extra Dump $42.60 $44.40 $47.80
3 Yard Container
Rental $53.05 $55.30 $59.50

Once per Month $97.85 $101.95 $109.80

Every Other Week $175.20 $182.55 $196.55

Weekly $262.70 $273.75 $294.75

2X per Week $471.65 $491.45 $529.20

Extra Dump $47.10 $49.10 $52.85

4 Yard Container
Rental $53.05 $55.30 $59.50

Once per Month $115.00 $119.85 $129.05

Every Other Week $182.30 $189.95 $204.55

Weekly $306.10 $318.95 $343.45

2X per Week $550.65 $573.80 $617.85

Extra Dump $76.50 $79.70 $85.85

Page 1 of 2

Exhibit A - Ordinance Bill No. 3 for 2018

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.77 *REVISED 08/10/18



Sweet Home Sanitation

City of Sweet Home - Proposed Rates
8.00%

7/1/2017 7/1/2018 8/1/2018

(4.2% CPI) (8% Recycling)

Temporary 4 Yard Container
3 Days $96.65 $100.70 $108.45

Extra Dump $76.50 $79.70 $85.85

Demurrage per Day After 3 Days $3.40 $3.55 $3.80

3 Tab Roofing (3 days) $143.70 $149.75 $161.25

Extra Dump $113.35 $118.10 $127.20

Roll-Off Services:
20 Yard Box/per Haul $158.05 $164.70 $164.70
30 Yard Box/per Haul $180.60 $188.20 $188.20
48 Yard Box/per Haul $203.15 $211.70 $211.70
Tonnage $67.20 $70.00 $70.00
Delivery $11.70 $12.20 $12.20
Demurrage – after 3 days $11.70 $12.20 $12.20
Monthly Rental $116.85 $121.75 $121.75

Sweet Home Transfer Station

Solid Waste     0-500 lbs Minimum 

Charge

$20.40 $21.25 $21.25 

Solid Waste    500 lbs or Greater $62.70/ton $70.00/ton $70.00/ton

32 Gallon Can $5.75/can $6.00/can $6.00/can

Yard Waste Clean $39.45/ton $41.10/ton $41.10/ton

Wood Waste Clean $34.00/ton $35.45/ton $35.45/ton

Refrigerators $24.75 $25.80 $25.80 

Scrap Metal Clean No Charge No Charge No Charge

E-Waste  TV's, Computers, 

Monitors, Etc

No Charge         

(7 Item Max)  

$5.20 each 

additional item

No Charge         

(7 Item Max)  

$5.40 each 

additional item

No Charge         

(7 Item Max)  

$5.40 each 

additional item
Used Motor Oil - 5 Gallon bucket 

or smaller

No Charge No Charge No Charge

Car Tires - Off Rim $5.75 $6.00 $6.00 

Car Tires - On Rim $6.80 $7.10 $7.10 

Commercial Equipment Tires $0.20/lb $0.20/lb $0.20/lb

Commingle Recycle (Not to Exceed 

100lbs/load)

$5.00/load $5.00/load $5.00/load

Page 2 of 2

Exhibit A - Ordinance Bill No. 3 for 2018

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.78 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 14, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY:   
R. Snyder, City Attorney 

TITLE:   
Adoption of new City Council 
Rules 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. City Council Rule changes from 

July 24 meeting. 
2. “Final” copy of City Council 

Rules. 
3. SHMC 2.04 Track Changes 
4. SHMC 2.04 Final 
5. Ordinance #4 for 2018. 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
         RESOLUTION 
 X      MOTION 
__     OTHER 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:  
To adopt a new set of modern City Council Rules that define a system to govern how the City 
Council conducts business.   
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The City Charter mandates/allows the Council to adopt a set of rules and procedures to govern 
the Council’s operation.  Many sections in the current set of rules are from 1951.  Several others 
are also outdated, last revised +/- 20 years ago. The rules and procedures have not been 
updated appropriately as the needs of the Council and the community have evolved. 
 
The Council Rules address procedures for council action ensuring fairness and transparency.  
They also dictate appropriate behavior by Councilors, staff and attending public.  This also sets 
out rules that are in agreement with the Charter and uses consistent language with the Charter 
for easier interpretation by all.  This set of City Council Rules is based on a model published by 
the League of Oregon Cities.  
 
Updated Council Rules were a work topic dating back to 2016 with the Interim City Manager.  
More recently Council has discussed and evaluated draft rules on at least five occasions: 
November 29, 2016; July 6, 2017; August 15, 2017; November 20, 2017; and July 24, 2018.   
 
Council evaluated the last draft on July 24, 2018 and requested three changes:  

1) Change “will” to “may” on page eight.  
2) Clarify how to proceed with a motion.  
3) Move the “Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions” back to the beginning of 
the meeting.   

Council can see those changes have been made and indicated in the draft pages immediately 
following this RCA, prior to the final version of the City Council Rules. 
 
Legal counsel also added a Section 25 titled Non-Material Failures, meaning if Council fails to 
follow the rules perfectly and the failure in procedure is not a substantial diversion from the rules 
or the spirit of the rules, it won’t be a reason to void the Council’s decision. 
 
This ordinance allows the Council to adopt or modify a set of rules with a separate resolution.  
City Charter requires all ordinances be presented three times and have a 30-day waiting period 
between the third reading and their effective date.  So, after the third reading on September 11, 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.79 *REVISED 08/10/18



staff will present a resolution adopting the new rules that will indicate an effective date thirty 
days later, October 11, to maintain consistency with the City Charter. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:    
Can the City Council conduct an even more professional business meeting in a fair and 
transparent manner while holding all parties accountable with a set of modern rules and 
procedures? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City Residents. Residents will be able to rest assured the Council is conducting 
themselves in a professional manner that best represents the community.  These rules 
also lay out expected procedures and practices allowing for a fair and systematic 
approach to city business.  Residents will have a clear understanding of City Council 
meeting procedures and thus a better understanding of their role in advocating policies 
that will advance their preferred policies. 

● City Councilors.  Councilors will have a clear understanding of procedure and thus a 
better understanding of their role and procedures to steer and guide policies that will 
advance the community forward. 

● Management Team. These rules will give staff a clear understanding of procedure and 
thus a better understanding of their role and procedures to steer and guide policies that 
will advance the community forward.   

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

1. No financial impacts to speak of. 
2. Learning Curve.  Some of these procedures are new and there will be a learning curve 

to implement them. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
A tool to fairly guide Council, community residents and staff through implementing new 
ordinances, resolutions and policies in an open and transparent manner. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  Continue with the current rules in place.   
2. Make a Motion to approve the City Council Rules as presented.  The Council and staff 

have invested a significant number of hours in these rules.  Council has reviewed them 
on multiple occasions and the current rules use language that is not clear in relation to 
the Charter.  These rules clarify roles and responsibilities for all parties involved in our 
local government. 

3. Suggest further changes to the City Council Rules.  Council can suggest additional 
changes to the proposed rules and we can bring them back for further review.   

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Staff recommends Council choose option #2 and make a motion to approve Ordinance 
#4 for 2018 for a first reading, Sweet Home Ordinance Pertaining to Council Rules and 
Amending SHMC Chapter 2.04 titled City Council and containing the City Council Rules as 
presented. 
 
Staff will present a resolution for the Council to adopt the rules at the September 11 City Council 
Meeting, making the rules effective October 11, 
 
These rules have been researched and vetted by the Council, staff, League of Oregon Cities 
and legal counsel.  They will be a living, evolving document that we can and should review 
regularly.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.80 *REVISED 08/10/18



DRAFT - 07/19/2018 08/07/2018 
City of Sweet Home 
City Council Rules 
Adopted ___________ 
Table of Contents 
Contents 
No table of contents entries found. 
 
1) Rules of the City Council adopted. 

“The Council shall… adopt rules and regulations for the government of its members and 
proceedings.” (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Sec. 14). The Sweet Home City Council 
does hereby adopt the following rules for conducting business and to govern its members, 
the same to be known as the Rules of the City Council (Council Rules).  The City Council 
shall strive to review its rules at least once every two years.  The Council Rules are not 
intended to replace or supersede any applicable federal or state laws or regulations, City 
ordinances or policies or provisions of the City Charter.   
a) Amendment. These rules of procedure are subject to amendment by the City Council in 

accordance with the rules noted herein.  
i) Any proposed amendment to these rules shall be noted on an agenda for a regular 

meeting, wherein the same shall be discussed, and open for comment by the public. 
ii) All amendments to these rules require a majority vote of the City Council. 
iii) Amended rules shall not go into effect until the meeting after the rule is approved. 
iv) These rules may be suspended upon a majority vote of the City Council. 

b) Repeal. These rules of procedure are subject to repeal and replacement by the City 
Council in accordance with the rules noted herein. 
i) Any proposed repeal of these rules shall be accompanied by a proposed 

replacement. 
ii) Any proposed repeal and replacement of these rules shall be noted on an agenda for 

a regular meeting, wherein the same shall be discussed, and open for comment by 
the public. 

iii) Any repeal and replacement of these rules requires a majority vote of the City 
Council. 

iv) Any repeal and replacement of these rules shall not go into effect until 30 days after 
the replacement rule is approved. 

2) Meeting of the City Council.  
a) Public Meeting Law. All meetings of the City Council shall comply with the Oregon State 

Public Meetings Law, which is hereby incorporated by reference into these rules. 
b) Regular Meeting. The City Council will meet for regular meetings on the second and the 

fourth Tuesday of each month unless the Mayor cancels or reschedules the meeting 
upon consensus of the City Council. The Mayor, in conference with the City Manager, 
may cancel a regular meeting for inclement weather or other unforeseen circumstances 
or emergency situations. Regular meetings will convene at 6:30 pm and will be 
adjourned by 10:00 pm unless extended by consent of a majority of the City Council. 

c) Special Meeting. Special Meetings of the City Council may be called in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 14 of the City Charter, “Special meetings of the council may be 
called by the mayor, either upon his/her own motion or upon the request of at least three 
members of the council, and held at any time, upon verbal or written notice to all 
members of the council then in the city. Special meetings of the council may also be held 
by the common consent of all members of the council.”  

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.81 *REVISED 08/10/18



determine the order of business, subject to the rules of the council.  He/she may vote as any 
other Councilor.”  (City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 16)  

10) President Pro Tem 
At its first meeting in the new term after each biennial election, the council shall elect from its 
membership, a President Pro Tem for a term of two years.  The President Pro Tem shall 
perform the duties of the Mayor in the absence of the Mayor.  (2014 City of Sweet Home 
Charter, Section 17) 

11) Order of Business. 
In the conduct of business of the City Council, the following procedure shall be substantially 
followed: 
a) Call to Order 
b) Roll Call 
c) Consent Agenda 
d) Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions  
e) Old Business 
f) New Business 
g) Ordinance Bills 

i) Introduction Request for Council Action and First Reading of Ordinance Bills  
ii) Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 
iii) Third Reading of Ordinance Bills 

h) Reports of Committees 
i) Reports of City Officials 
j) Council Business for Good of the Order 
k) Adjournment  

12) Ordinance Bills. 
Proposed ordinances shall be known as “ordinance bills.”  They shall be numbered 
consecutively and filed by the City Manager in the order in which they are introduced.  
a) Numbering. The city recorder shall number all ordinances with a consecutive 

identification number during each calendar year, in the order of their introduction. Each 
number shall be followed by the last two digits of the year in which the ordinance was 
introduced.  

b) The enacting clause of all ordinances hereafter passed shall be “The City of Sweet 
Home does ordain as follows.” (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 23) 

c) All ordinances shall, before presentation to the council, have been approved as to form 
by the city attorney, or the city attorney’s designee. 

d) “Every ordinance shall be fully and distinctly read in open council meeting on one day 
and shall be read by title only on two different days previous to being put upon its final 
passage provided that the council may have the ordinance fully and distinctly read at any 
reading thereof; provided, however, that any ordinance may be introduced and read the 
first time at any meeting and may upon a unanimous vote of all the members of council 
present at the meeting be read a second time by title only and placed upon its passage 
at the meeting held on a separate and successive day.” (2014 City of Sweet Home 
Charter, Section 24) 

e) After an ordinance is introduced for consideration by the council for presentation for first 
reading, the council may direct that:  
i) A public hearing on the ordinance be held;  
ii) Refer the ordinance to committee for review and recommendation;  
iii) Refer the ordinance to the city manager for further revision;  
iv) Pass the ordinance to a second reading;  
v) Pass the ordinance to a second reading and by,  “…unanimous vote of all the 

members of the council present at the meeting be read a second time by title only 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.82 *REVISED 08/10/18



and placed upon its passage at the meeting held on a separate and successive day.” 
(2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 24) 

vi) Reject the ordinance in whole or in part. 
f) All ordinances when introduced for first reading shall be identified by title and number on 

a calendar of first reading and may be passed to a second reading as a group without 
further reference.  

g) Except as otherwise provided by this section, on second reading all ordinances shall be 
placed by title and number on a calendar of second reading and may be passed to a 
third reading as a group, provided that the vote for the passage of the calendar is 
unanimous.  

h) The third reading of ordinance bills need be read by title only.   
i) Each ordinance shall take effect on the thirtieth day after passage; provided that when 

the council deems it expedient or in case of emergency; an ordinance may provide a 
different time when it shall take effect, or that it shall take effect immediately.  All 
ordinances shall be posted for 10 days after passage in three or more conspicuous 
places in the city. (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 25) 

13) Procedure. 
In all cases not specifically provided for herein or in the City Charter, the Council shall be 
governed by the law and precedents laid down in the then current edition of Robert’s Rules 
of Order.  

14) Quorum. 
A majority of council members is a quorum. A quorum is required to conduct business, but a 
smaller number may meet and adjourn from time to time to compel the attendance of absent 
members in the manner provided by ordinance.  The Council shall keep a journal of its 
proceeding, and on the call of two members shall the yeas and nays to be taken and 
entered in the journal upon any question before it except a motion to adjourn.  The 
proceedings of the council shall be public. (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 15)   

15) Resolutions. 
All resolutions shall be in writing and numbered consecutively in the order in which they are 
introduced in each calendar year. 

16) Vote. 
The concurrence of a majority of a quorum shall be required to determine any matter before 
the Council except as provided otherwise in the Charter. (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, 
Section. 18) 
a) All questions shall be voted on by affirmation except those involving the expenditure of 

money and third reading of ordinance bills in which case a roll call shall be taken.  If the 
chairperson doubts or a decision is called for, a roll call shall be taken.  
Every Councilor, when a question is taken, shall vote.  If a Councilor is planning to 
abstain, the Councilor must declare the intent to abstain prior to the vote. 
No Councilor shall be permitted to vote on any subject in which he or she has a conflict 
of interest. 

17) Debate and Withdrawal of Motions. 
Members who wish to make a motion must first be recognized by the chairperson. After the 
Councilor makes a motion the chairperson should then restate it or rule it out of order, then 
call for a second. No motion shall be debated until it has been seconded and distinctly 
announced by the chairperson and shall have been reduced to writing if so desired by any 
Councilor.  It shall be read by the City Manager, or their designee, when required by 
members for information.  A motion may be withdrawn at any time before amendment.  
a) Most motions require a second, although there are some exceptions: 

i) Nominations, points of order, requests to remove an item from the consent agenda, 
and motions to table. 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.83 *REVISED 08/10/18



iv) Council members shall not request City staff to perform significant work without the 
prior approval of the City Manager, so that workloads and work plans are not 
adversely impacted. Councilors will limit individual inquiries and requests for 
information from staff to those questions that may be answered readily as part of 
staff’s day-to-day responsibilities. Questions of a more complex nature shall be 
directed to the City Manager. 

v) Respecting roles and responsibilities of staff when and if expressing criticism in a 
public meeting or through public electronic mail messages. 

vi) Members of the Council shall normally share any information obtained from staff with 
the entire council. This section is not intended to apply to questions by members of 
the council acting in their individual capacities rather than as members of the council, 
nor to questions regarding conflict of interest or similar issues particular to a member 
of the council.  

vii) The mayor will refer any comments or questions regarding City personnel or 
administration to the City Manager.  The mayor may redirect other questions to a 
Council member or the City Manager, as appropriate.  Council members may also 
address questions directly to the City Manager, who may either answer the inquiry or 
ask a staff member to do so. 

25) Non-Material Failure 
25)a) Non-material failures to follow the Council Rules in conducting business or to 

abide by the rules of procedure does not invalidate the decisions of the City Council nor 
will it be grounds to later challenge the validity of the decision. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.84 *REVISED 08/10/18



City of Sweet Home 
City Council Rules 

Adopted August 14, 2018 
 

Table of Contents 
1) Rules of the City Council Adopted. ............................................................................. 1 
2) Meeting of the City Council. ........................................................................................ 2 
3) Minutes. ......................................................................................................................... 2 
4) Agenda. ......................................................................................................................... 3 
5) Attendance. ................................................................................................................... 3 
6) Citizens Duties at City Council Meetings. ................................................................... 3 
7) Councilor’s Duties at City Council Meetings. ............................................................. 4 
8) Mayor. ............................................................................................................................ 5 
9) Mayor’s Duties at City Council Meetings. ................................................................... 5 
10) President Pro Tem ........................................................................................................ 5 
11) Order of Business. ....................................................................................................... 5 
13) Procedure. .................................................................................................................... 6 
14) Quorum. ........................................................................................................................ 7 
15) Resolutions. .................................................................................................................. 7 
16) Vote. .............................................................................................................................. 7 
17) Debate and Withdrawal of Motions. ............................................................................ 7 
18) Vacancies. ..................................................................................................................... 7 
19) Ethics. ........................................................................................................................... 8 
20) Violations. ..................................................................................................................... 9 
21) Legal Advice. ................................................................................................................ 9 
22) Public Records. ............................................................................................................ 9 
23) Representing the City. ................................................................................................10 
24) Communication with Staff. .........................................................................................10 
25) Non-Material Failure ....................................................................................................10 
 

 
 
1) Rules of the City Council Adopted. 

“The Council shall… adopt rules and regulations for the government of its members and 
proceedings.” (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Sec. 14). The Sweet Home City Council 
does hereby adopt the following rules for conducting business and to govern its members, 
the same to be known as the Rules of the City Council (Council Rules).  The City Council 
shall strive to review its rules at least once every two years.  The Council Rules are not 
intended to replace or supersede any applicable federal or state laws or regulations, City 
ordinances or policies or provisions of the City Charter.   

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.85 *REVISED 08/10/18



a) Amendment. These rules of procedure are subject to amendment by the City Council in 
accordance with the rules noted herein.  
i) Any proposed amendment to these rules shall be noted on an agenda for a regular 

meeting, wherein the same shall be discussed, and open for comment by the public. 
ii) All amendments to these rules require a majority vote of the City Council. 
iii) Amended rules shall not go into effect until the meeting after the rule is approved. 
iv) These rules may be suspended upon a majority vote of the City Council. 

b) Repeal. These rules of procedure are subject to repeal and replacement by the City 
Council in accordance with the rules noted herein. 
i) Any proposed repeal of these rules shall be accompanied by a proposed 

replacement. 
ii) Any proposed repeal and replacement of these rules shall be noted on an agenda for 

a regular meeting, wherein the same shall be discussed, and open for comment by 
the public. 

iii) Any repeal and replacement of these rules requires a majority vote of the City 
Council. 

iv) Any repeal and replacement of these rules shall not go into effect until 30 days after 
the replacement rule is approved. 

2) Meeting of the City Council.  
a) Public Meeting Law. All meetings of the City Council shall comply with the Oregon State 

Public Meetings Law, which is hereby incorporated by reference into these rules. 
b) Regular Meeting. The City Council will meet for regular meetings on the second and the 

fourth Tuesday of each month unless the Mayor cancels or reschedules the meeting 
upon consensus of the City Council. The Mayor, in conference with the City Manager, 
may cancel a regular meeting for inclement weather or other unforeseen circumstances 
or emergency situations. Regular meetings will convene at 6:30 pm and will be 
adjourned by 10:00 pm unless extended by consent of a majority of the City Council. 

c) Special Meeting. Special Meetings of the City Council may be called in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 14 of the City Charter, “Special meetings of the council may be 
called by the mayor, either upon his/her own motion or upon the request of at least three 
members of the council, and held at any time, upon verbal or written notice to all 
members of the council then in the city. Special meetings of the council may also be held 
by the common consent of all members of the council.”  

d) At Special Meetings of the Council, called in a manner provided by the Charter, no 
business shall be acted upon except that mentioned in the notice or call of the special 
meeting. 

e) Work Sessions. Work sessions will be held to provide Council with an informal 
opportunity to ask questions about pertinent issues and provide guidance to staff.  No 
issues will be decided in work sessions that would require formal Council decision 
making.    

f) Executive Session. An executive session shall be held in accordance with Oregon State 
Public Meetings Law.  The chairperson may call any regular, special or emergency 
meeting into executive session by citing the specific provision of ORS 192.660 which 
authorizes the session.  The chairperson shall determine which persons other than the 
City Council shall be allowed to attend executive sessions.  The chairperson shall 
instruct any media representatives present not to disclose the substance of any 
discussion during executive session.  No final decision shall be made in executive 
session.  To make a final decision, the chairperson shall either call the meeting into open 
session or place the decision on the agenda of a future open session. 

3) Minutes. 
The City Recorder, or the designee, shall prepare written minutes of all open regular and 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.86 *REVISED 08/10/18



special meetings, which shall be approved by the City Council and made available for public 
inspection.  All meetings shall be recorded for the benefit of the City Recorder in the 
preparation of the minutes. 
a) Written Minutes. Per Section 20 (c)(16) of the City Charter, the City Manager shall, 

“…serve as the city recorder and such to be clerk of the council, keep an accurate 
record of its proceedings in a book provided for that purpose, and countersign all 
instruments and writings by this charter or by the laws of the state or the city.”  Written 
minutes shall include the names of all City Councilors present, all motions, resolutions, 
orders, ordinances and measures proposed and their disposition, the results of all votes 
and references to any documents discussed.  Adopted minutes shall be signed by the 
chairperson. 

b) Audio/Video Recording. City Council meetings may be audio and/or video recorded.  If 
the City of Sweet Home records the meeting, copies shall be retained by the City of 
Sweet Home in order to comply with the State of Oregon Public Meetings Law. 

c) Audio/Video Area. All audio and/or video recording by the public and/or press shall be 
done from within a designated area. 

4) Agenda. 
The City Manager shall coordinate with the chairperson on the preparation of an agenda of 
the business to be presented at a City Council meeting.  The chairperson and City Manager 
shall endeavor to publish the agenda of regular meetings five days prior to the meeting.  The 
agenda packet containing all agenda items will be available for the City Council on that day.   
a) Non-Agenda items brought to Council by an individual Councilor must be introduced by 

motion during a City Council meeting and requested to be on the agenda for the next 
meeting.  The motion, which can be made by the Councilor submitting the item, must 
have a second for the item to move to the next agenda.   

b) In a time sensitive or emergency situation, items may be brought forth, and by a majority 
vote of the Council, reviewed during the current meeting.   

5) Attendance. 
Councilors will inform the chairperson or the City Manager if they are unable to attend any 
meeting.  Additionally, the Mayor will inform the President Pro Tem or the City Manager 
regarding any absence by the Mayor. 
a) Per Section 12 of the City Charter, “An office shall be deemed vacant upon the 

incumbent’s death, insanity, conviction of a felony, resignation, removal from the city or 
absence from the city for a period of 30 days without the consent of the council in the 
case of the mayor, manager, municipal judge or councilor…and in the case of the mayor 
or a councilor, upon his/her absence from meetings of the council for 60 days without the 
consent of the council.”  

b) When unable to physically attend a Council meeting, City Council members may 
participate in Council meetings, including executive sessions and work sessions, by 
telephone or video conference.  Telephonic or video participation must be approved in 
advance by the chairperson and there must be a quorum present in the City Council 
Chambers before telephonic participation will be allowed.  All Council members, whether 
attending the meeting in person or by telephonic/video means, shall have identical voting 
rights.  The participant must be telephonically/video present for the entire meeting.  

6) Citizens Duties at City Council Meetings. 
a) General Procedure. Citizens desiring to address Council shall first be recognized by the 

chairperson.  All remarks and questions shall be addressed to the Council as a whole 
and not to any individual Councilor thereof.  Any remarks and questions regarding 
administration of the City shall be referred to the City Manager by the chairperson.   

b) Agenda Items. Anyone desiring to speak to the Council on an agenda item must indicate 
their desire to speak to the chairperson by signing in on the request to speak form. 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.87 *REVISED 08/10/18



When that agenda item is on the floor for discussion, the chairperson will recognize 
registered individual(s) to address the Council. 

c) Non-Agenda Items. Anyone desiring to speak to the Council on a non-agenda item must 
first properly sign in on the request to speak form, clearly indicating the topic they wish to 
address.  The chairperson, at their discretion, may permit such persons to address the 
Council and may limit the time for comment as needed, generally allowing between three 
to five minutes. 

d) Speaker’s Conduct. Citizens acknowledged by the chairperson to address the Council 
shall step up to the microphone, give his/her name, address and subject matter of their 
comments in an audible tone of voice for the record and, unless further time is granted 
by the chairperson, shall limit their address to three (3) minutes.  
i) All comments shall be made to the entire Council and not to any single member or to 

staff.  
ii) Any questions for Council members or staff shall be presented through the 

chairperson.  
iii) The Council will determine the disposition of any issues raised (e.g., placed on the 

agenda, designated for a work session, future agendas, refer to staff, or do not 
consider). 

e) Conduct of Audience. All audience members shall abide by the rules of common 
decorum contained herein and as would be commonly expected in a public setting. No 
audience member shall disrupt the conduct of the meeting or clap, cheer, hoot, holler, 
gesture, whistle, guffaw, jeer, boo, hiss, make remarks out of turn, use profanity, or the 
like. Any audience member who does so shall be determined out of order and the 
chairperson may have such person removed from the Council chambers. Such person 
shall not be permitted to attend the remainder of that Council meeting. 

f) Citizen Complaints. All citizen complaints regarding city operations shall be submitted to 
the City Manager’s office in writing preferably on the form provided by the City. Such 
forms will be available at City Hall and on the City’s web site.  Each form must be signed 
by the person making the complaint. The City Manager shall forward any such written 
complaints to the appropriate person for review. Citizen complaints brought directly to 
the Council during a meeting may not be heard or considered. 

7) Councilor’s Duties at City Council Meetings. 
Councilors shall preserve order and decorum during Council meetings, and shall not, by 
conversation or other action, delay or interrupt the proceedings or refuse to obey the Orders 
of the chairperson.  Councilors shall, when addressing staff or members of the public, 
confine themselves to questions or issues then under discussion, shall not engage in 
personal attacks, shall not impugn the motives of any speaker, and shall at all times, while in 
session or otherwise, conduct themselves in a manner appropriate to the dignity of their 
office. 
a) Every Councilor desiring to speak shall first address the chairperson and await 

recognition to obtain the floor.  No person other than members of the Council and the 
person having the floor shall enter into any discussion, either directly or through a 
member of the Council without permission of the chairperson. 

b) Any Councilor who has the floor shall confine himself or herself to the questions under 
debate, avoid personalities and refrain from impugning motives of any member, member 
argument or vote.  No member shall address the chairperson or demand the floor while 
any vote is being taken. 

c) Councilors shall limit their remarks on a subject to five minutes unless granted additional 
time by the Council.  No Councilor shall be allowed to speak more than once upon any 
one subject, until every other member choosing to speak thereon has spoken. 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.88 *REVISED 08/10/18



d) A Councilor once recognized shall not be interrupted while speaking, unless called to 
order by the chairperson, or unless a point of order is raised by any Councilor while they 
are speaking, in which case he or she shall cease speaking immediately until the point is 
determined.  If ruled to be in order, the Councilor shall be permitted to proceed; if ruled 
to be out of order, the Councilor shall remain silent or shall alter their remarks as to 
comply with the ruling. 

e) City staff and employees shall observe the same rules of order and decorum as are 
applicable to the Council. 

8) Mayor. 
The Mayor shall act as the chairperson and preside at meetings of the Council, and be 
recognized as the head of the City for all ceremonial purposes. In case of the Mayor’s 
absence or temporary disability, the President Pro Tem shall act as the chairperson during 
the continuance of the absence. In case of the absence or temporary disability of the Mayor 
and President Pro Tem, the members of the Council shall select a member to act as 
chairperson during the continuance of the absences. The Mayor or President Pro Tem are 
referred to as the “chairperson” from time-to-time in these Council Rules. 
a) At its first meeting of the new term after each biennial general election, the Council shall 

elect from its membership a chairperson who shall be Mayor for a term of two years. 
(2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Sec. 3) 

b) The Mayor shall appoint the various committees provided for under the rules of the 
council or otherwise and shall fill all vacancies in committees of the council from that 
body.  (2014 City of Sweet Home City Charter, Sec. 19) 

c) The Mayor shall sign all ordinances passed by the Council within three days after 
passage. (2014 City of Sweet Home City Charter, Sec. 19) 

d) The Mayor shall sign all instruments and writings authorized by the charter, the laws of 
the State of Oregon or the City Council.  In the absence of the Mayor, such instruments 
shall be signed by the President Pro Tem of the City Council. (2014 City of Sweet Home 
City Charter, Sec. 19) 

e) All orders on the city treasurer shall be signed by two of the three following named city 
officers, being the Mayor, the City Manager and the City Treasurer. (2014 City of Sweet 
Home Charter, Section 19) 

9) Mayor’s Duties at City Council Meetings. 
“The Mayor shall be the chairperson of the council and shall preside over its deliberations.  
He/she shall have the authority to preserve order, enforce the rules of the council and 
determine the order of business, subject to the rules of the council.  He/she may vote as any 
other Councilor.”  (City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 16)  

10) President Pro Tem 
At its first meeting in the new term after each biennial election, the council shall elect from its 
membership, a President Pro Tem for a term of two years.  The President Pro Tem shall 
perform the duties of the Mayor in the absence of the Mayor.  (2014 City of Sweet Home 
Charter, Section 17) 

11) Order of Business. 
In the conduct of business of the City Council, the following procedure shall be substantially 
followed: 
a) Call to Order 
b) Roll Call 
c) Consent Agenda 
d) Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions  
e) Old Business 
f) New Business 
g) Ordinance Bills 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.89 *REVISED 08/10/18



i) Request for Council Action and First Reading of Ordinance Bills  
ii) Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 
iii) Third Reading of Ordinance Bills 

h) Reports of Committees 
i) Reports of City Officials 
j) Council Business for Good of the Order 
k) Adjournment  

12) Ordinance Bills. 
Proposed ordinances shall be known as “ordinance bills.”  They shall be numbered 
consecutively and filed by the City Manager in the order in which they are introduced.  
a) Numbering. The city recorder shall number all ordinances with a consecutive 

identification number during each calendar year, in the order of their introduction. Each 
number shall be followed by the last two digits of the year in which the ordinance was 
introduced.  

b) The enacting clause of all ordinances hereafter passed shall be “The City of Sweet 
Home does ordain as follows.” (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 23) 

c) All ordinances shall, before presentation to the council, have been approved as to form 
by the city attorney, or the city attorney’s designee. 

d) “Every ordinance shall be fully and distinctly read in open council meeting on one day 
and shall be read by title only on two different days previous to being put upon its final 
passage provided that the council may have the ordinance fully and distinctly read at any 
reading thereof; provided, however, that any ordinance may be introduced and read the 
first time at any meeting and may upon a unanimous vote of all the members of council 
present at the meeting be read a second time by title only and placed upon its passage 
at the meeting held on a separate and successive day.” (2014 City of Sweet Home 
Charter, Section 24) 

e) After an ordinance is introduced for consideration by the council for presentation for first 
reading, the council may direct that:  
i) A public hearing on the ordinance be held;  
ii) Refer the ordinance to committee for review and recommendation;  
iii) Refer the ordinance to the city manager for further revision;  
iv) Pass the ordinance to a second reading;  
v) Pass the ordinance to a second reading and by,  “…unanimous vote of all the 

members of the council present at the meeting be read a second time by title only 
and placed upon its passage at the meeting held on a separate and successive day.” 
(2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 24) 

vi) Reject the ordinance in whole or in part. 
f) Except as otherwise provided by this section, on second reading all ordinances shall be 

placed by title and number on a calendar of second reading and may be passed to a 
third reading as a group, provided that the vote for the passage of the calendar is 
unanimous.  

g) The third reading of ordinance bills need be read by title only.   
h) Each ordinance shall take effect on the thirtieth day after passage; provided that when 

the council deems it expedient or in case of emergency; an ordinance may provide a 
different time when it shall take effect, or that it shall take effect immediately.  All 
ordinances shall be posted for 10 days after passage in three or more conspicuous 
places in the city. (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 25) 

13) Procedure. 
In all cases not specifically provided for herein or in the City Charter, the Council shall be 
governed by the law and precedents laid down in the then current edition of Robert’s Rules 
of Order.  

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.90 *REVISED 08/10/18



14) Quorum. 
A majority of council members is a quorum. A quorum is required to conduct business, but a 
smaller number may meet and adjourn from time to time to compel the attendance of absent 
members in the manner provided by ordinance.  The Council shall keep a journal of its 
proceeding, and on the call of two members shall the yeas and nays to be taken and 
entered in the journal upon any question before it except a motion to adjourn.  The 
proceedings of the council shall be public. (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 15)   

15) Resolutions. 
All resolutions shall be in writing and numbered consecutively in the order in which they are 
introduced in each calendar year. 

16) Vote. 
The concurrence of a majority of a quorum shall be required to determine any matter before 
the Council except as provided otherwise in the Charter. (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, 
Section. 18) 
a) All questions shall be voted on by affirmation except those involving the expenditure of 

money and third reading of ordinance bills in which case a roll call shall be taken.  If the 
chairperson doubts or a decision is called for, a roll call shall be taken.  
Every Councilor, when a question is taken, shall vote.  If a Councilor is planning to 
abstain, the Councilor must declare the intent to abstain prior to the vote. 
No Councilor shall be permitted to vote on any subject in which he or she has a conflict 
of interest. 

17) Debate and Withdrawal of Motions. 
Members who wish to make a motion must first be recognized by the chairperson. After the 
Councilor makes a motion the chairperson should then restate it or rule it out of order, then 
call for a second. No motion shall be debated until it has been seconded and distinctly 
announced by the chairperson and shall have been reduced to writing if so desired by any 
Councilor.  It shall be read by the City Manager, or their designee, when required by 
members for information.  A motion may be withdrawn at any time before amendment.  
a) Most motions require a second, although there are some exceptions: 

i) Nominations, points of order, requests to remove an item from the consent agenda, 
and motions to table. 

ii) A motion to table does not require a second and is not debatable. The chairperson 
will state the motion and call for the vote. 

b) Motions for Reconsideration. A Motion for Reconsideration must be made by a member 
from the prevailing side. Any member may make the second. The following rules apply 
to motions for reconsideration:  
i) Motion must be in a timely manner but in no instance more than six (6) months after 

the original action. 
ii) When (6) months have elapsed, any member may bring the item before the Council.  
iii) No motion to reconsider an adopted quasi-judicial written decision shall be 

entertained after the close of the meeting at which the written findings were adopted. 
18) Vacancies. 

a) Vacancies in office filled by election or by appointment by the council shall be filled by 
appointment by the council at any regular or special meeting, and the person so 
appointed shall serve the full unexpired term and until his/her successor is chosen and 
qualified.  (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 13) 

b) Vacancies in offices filled by appointment by the manager shall be filled by appointment 
by the manager.  An officer appointed to fill a vacancy shall within 24 hours after his/her 
appointment qualify for office, and unless he/she does so, the office shall be considered 
vacant.  During the temporary absence of any officer from the city for any cause his/her 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.91 *REVISED 08/10/18



office may be filled temporarily in the manner provided for filling vacancies in office. 
(2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, Section 13) 

19) Ethics. 
All members of the City Council shall conduct themselves so as to bring credit upon the City 
as a whole, and to set an example of good ethical conduct for all citizens of the community.  
Councilors should constantly bear in mind these responsibilities to the entire electorate, and 
refrain from actions benefitting any individual or special interest group at the expense of the 
City as a whole.  Councilors should likewise do everything in their power to ensure impartial 
application of the law to all citizens, and equal treatment of each citizen before the law.  
a) All members of the council shall review and observe the requirements of state ethics 

law. In addition to complying with state ethics law, all members of the council shall 
refrain from:  
i) Disclosing confidential information.  
ii) Taking action, which benefits special interest groups or persons at the expense of 

the City as a whole.  
iii) Expressing an opinion contrary to the official position of the council without so 

saying.  
iv) Conducting themselves in a manner so as to bring discredit upon the government of 

the City.  
b) Ex Parte Communications in Land Use. 

When Council receives written ex parte communication regarding land use, City Council 
should inform the citizen that the Council is interested in his or her perspective; however, 
because the Council is hearing the associated land use application, Council must refrain 
from reading and responding to information outside of the public hearing process.  The 
Councilor should inform the citizen that the information received is being forwarded to 
staff for inclusion in the public record.  Council shall then forward all ex parte 
correspondence received to staff as soon as possible for inclusion in the land use file, 
and if possible, the record. 

c) Expenses and Reimbursement. 
Councilor expenditures for other than routine reimbursable expenses (e.g. budgeted 
conference registration, travel, etc.) will require advance Council approval according to 
the purchasing rules which apply. 

d) Interference in Administration. 
No member of the council shall in any manner, directly or indirectly, by suggestion or 
otherwise, attempt to influence or coerce the manager in the making of any appointment 
or removal, or the purchase of supplies, or attempt to exact any promise relative to any 
appointment from any candidate for manager, or discuss, directly or indirectly, with any 
such candidate, the matter of appointments to any city office or employment.  Any 
violation of the foregoing provisions of this section shall work a forfeiture of the office of 
the offending member of Council, may be removed therefrom by the Council or by any 
court of competent jurisdiction; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall be 
construed as prohibiting the council, while in open session, discussing with or 
suggesting to the manager, fully and freely, anything pertaining to city affairs and for the 
best interest of the city.  Neither the manager nor any person in the employ of the city 
shall take any part in securing, or shall contribute any money toward the nomination or 
election of any candidate for the municipal office. (2014 City of Sweet Home Charter, 
Section 20(f)) 

e) A Councilor who desires major policy or ordinance research should first raise the issue 
at a regular meeting of the Council.  The Council should consider items in light of City 
priorities and workload and agree to proceed with an issue or ordinance before any staff 
time is spent preparing a report.  The Councilor may present information or a position 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.92 *REVISED 08/10/18



paper or ask for a department report or committee recommendation.  Councilors who 
agree that staff time can be spent on a particular item are not bound to support the issue 
when it comes before the Council for a vote. 

20) Violations.  
a) The council may enforce these rules and ensure compliance with city ordinances, 

charter and state laws applicable to governing bodies. lf a member of council violates 
these rules, city ordinances, the city charter or state laws applicable to governing bodies, 
the council may take action to protect the integrity of the council and discipline or remove 
the member. 

b) The council may investigate the actions of any member of council and meet in executive 
session under ORS 192.660(2)(b) to discuss any finding that reasonable grounds exist 
that a violation of these rules, local ordinance, the city charter or state laws applicable to 
governing bodies has occurred. Sufficient notice must be given to the affected member 
to afford them the opportunity to request an open hearing under ORS 192.660(2)(b).  

c) After the Executive Session or Public Hearing, if further action by the City Council is 
needed in addition to any other options allowed by law the City Council may use the 
following. 

(1) Admonition: An admonition shall be verbal vote in open session made by the 
Council and recorded in the minutes. 

(2) Reprimand: A reprimand shall be administered to the offending Councilor by 
letter. The letter shall be prepared by the City Council after action in open 
session to approve such letter. If the member objects to the contents of such 
letter, they may file a request for review of the content of the letter of reprimand 
with the City Council. The City Council shall review the letter of reprimand based 
upon the request for review and any record established, and may take whatever 
action reasonable and prudent under the circumstances. 

(3) Removal from office: Removal from office shall occur after trial on written 
charges before the City Council and by complying with the recall provisions of 
ORS 249.865. 

ii) The action of the City Council in response to a violation of these Council Rules shall 
be final and not subject to further review before the City Council. 

21) Legal Advice. 
a) Requests to the City Attorney for advice requiring legal research may not be made by a 

Council member without the consensus of the Council.  Before requesting research or 
other action by the City Attorney, the Council member should consult with the City 
Manager.  Exceptions to this are issues related to the performance of the City Manager 
and unique or sensitive City business-related requests. 

b) PRESERVING THE ATTORNEY CLIENT PRIVILEGE. No Council member shall make 
any disclosures or release any information which would result in the waiver of the 
attorney/client privilege without first obtaining the approval of a majority of the Council in 
open session. Such a request for disclosure shall first be raised during an executive 
session for discussion prior to a vote in open session. 

22) Public Records. 
a) The disposition of public records created or received by Councilors shall be in 

accordance with Oregon Public Records Law.  Written information incidental to the 
official duties of a member of the City Council, including mail messages, notes, memos 
and calendars (e.g., Outlook calendars and “Day Timers”) are public records and are 
subject to disclosure under the Public Records Law. 

b) Documents submitted to the city as evidence or written testimony during a public hearing 
are public records. If such a document contains the name, address, including email 
address, and telephone number of the person, then it will be included in the record of the 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.93 *REVISED 08/10/18



proceeding. Because the name, address, including email address, and telephone 
number are part of a public record, this information will be generally disseminated to the 
public, and must be disclosed if a public records request is submitted for the documents. 
A person who believes such disclosure would present a danger to his or her personal 
safety, and who wishes to exempt his or her address, including email address, and 
telephone number from disclosure must submit a written request for non-disclosure to 
the city recorder. 

23) Representing the City. 
a) Representing City. lf a member of the council, to include the mayor, appears as a 

representative of the city before another governmental agency, the media or an 
organization to give a statement on an issue, the member may only state the official 
position of the city, as approved by a majority of the council.  

b) Personal Opinions. If a member of the council, to include the mayor, appears in their 
personal capacity before another governmental agency, the media or an organization to 
give a statement on an issue, the member must state they are expressing their own 
opinion and not that of the city before giving their statement.  

c) Upon returning, a reasonable effort should be made by the Councilor to communicate 
any information or questions pertinent to city business to the full council within a 
reasonable time frame.  

24) Communication with Staff.  
a) City Council will respect the separation between policy making (Council function) and 

administration (City Manager function) by:  
i) Working with the staff as a team with a spirit of mutual respect and support. 
ii) Except in a Council meeting, not attempting to influence a City employee or the City 

Manager concerning personnel matters, purchasing issues, the award of contracts or 
the selection of consultants, the processing of development applications or granting 
of City licenses and permits.  However, the sharing of ideas on these matters is 
appropriate. 

iii) Limiting individual contacts with City staff to the City Manager, or other designated 
staff as not to influence staff decisions or recommendations, interfere with their work 
performance, undermine the City Manager authority or prevent the full Council from 
having the benefit of any information received.  

iv) Council members shall not request City staff to perform significant work without the 
prior approval of the City Manager, so that workloads and work plans are not 
adversely impacted. Councilors will limit individual inquiries and requests for 
information from staff to those questions that may be answered readily as part of 
staff’s day-to-day responsibilities. Questions of a more complex nature shall be 
directed to the City Manager. 

v) Respecting roles and responsibilities of staff when and if expressing criticism in a 
public meeting or through public electronic mail messages. 

vi) Members of the Council shall normally share any information obtained from staff with 
the entire council. This section is not intended to apply to questions by members of 
the council acting in their individual capacities rather than as members of the council, 
nor to questions regarding conflict of interest or similar issues particular to a member 
of the council.  

vii) The mayor will refer any comments or questions regarding City personnel or 
administration to the City Manager.  The mayor may redirect other questions to a 
Council member or the City Manager, as appropriate.  Council members may also 
address questions directly to the City Manager, who may either answer the inquiry or 
ask a staff member to do so. 

25) Non-Material Failure 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.94 *REVISED 08/10/18



a) Non-material failures to follow the Council Rules in conducting business or to abide by 
the rules of procedure does not invalidate the decisions of the City Council nor will it be 
grounds to later challenge the validity of the decision. 

 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.95 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.96 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.97 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.98 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.99 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 

COMMUNITY HEALTH COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
July 16, 2018 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Conference Room.   
 

Present: Councilor Gourley, Jim Gourley, Dick Knowles, Bill Matthews, Larry Horton (6:03pm) 
 
Staff Present: Ray Towry, City Manager 
              
Approval of Minutes June 18, 2018: Amend Minutes to appropriately reflect Dick Knowles comment. 
  
Committee Reports:  
Health Fair Committee:  Bob Dalton reported they are still working to secure vendors and that Samaritan 
Health has committed to 10 cases of water.  Bob Dalton will follow up with Safeway regarding water as 
well.  Bob Dalton is concerned about the heat on the day of the event and is working to secure a fan from 
Napa, Ice from the School District and ice and water from Safeway. 
Mr. Dalton stated his disappointment in the lack of Council and administrate support for the community.  
The question was asked how the project can access City funds in which City Manager replied the City 
could be billed directly or receipts turned in for reimbursement.  Discussion ensued about the rental fee for 
tables from the Chamber.  It was reported Sweet Home Fire and Ambulance may not be interested in 
having a table at the event. 
 
Western University/ City Project: Bob Dalton reported Dr. Muscato has been unavailable and there is 
currently no timeline. 
 
Western University/ City Outreach: Dr. Horton reported no contact as of late, however he is hopeful to have 
a report by the end of August.  Dr. Horton will reach out to Di Lacey. 
 
Hero Banner Project: Jim Gourley stated 15 additional banners are in process.  He is setting up an external 
committee to take over the project by the end of August.  The banners are expected to have a lifecycle of 
5-10 years. 
 
Community Resources Committee:  It was reported the committee is meeting weekly and currently have 6-
8 active members.  The committee is looking to find property or a building to purchase.  The committee is 
also researching options of converting a bus to showers which could then make a circuit between multiple 
cities to share cost.  The possibility of a singular sponsor such as Samaritan Health was discussed. 
 
Good of the Order:  Community Needs – Bob Dalton discussed the philosophy of the committee.  
Discussion ensued on how to identify specific demographics and causes of homelessness to connect with 
specific resources. 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
With no further business the meeting adjourned at 7:30 pm 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council Community Health Committee 
Meeting on June 18, 2018. 
 
 
______________________________    _______________________ 
Chair – Councilor Gourley      Date: 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.100 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
To:  City Council 
  Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
From:  Brandon Neish, Finance Director 
 
Subject: Finance Department Monthly Report – July 2018 
 
 
The Finance Department is responsible for the for the fiscal management of the City of Sweet 
Home. This includes accounts payable, payroll, general accounting, preparing the annual 
budget and the city’s annual audit. This department also administers the city’s assessment 
docket, coordinates employee’s benefits and maintains financial records relating to grants and 
contracts. The following information represents the department’s activities during the month of 
July 2018. 
 
Accounts Payable: 
The Finance Department maintains a weekly schedule for AP disbursements when possible. 
City departments submit documentation through Springbrook to request payment to vendors. 
Once the Finance Department has a completed purchase order and invoice/receipt, a check is 
printed and mailed within seven (7) business days. 
 
For the month of July 2018, 80 checks were printed totaling $221,268.93. A list of the checks is 
provided for your review. Below is a list of the checks that were equal to or exceeded $5,000 
and their purpose (if not clear on list). 
 
 
Check No. Vendor Description Amount 

87466 SAIF Corporation 
Annual workers’ 
compensation 
premium 

$56,360.00 

87480 CH2M/Jacobs May 2018 Out of 
Scope Services $5,000.00 

87486 Dude Solutions 

Startup costs for 
Facility Dude work 
order system (Public 
Works) 

$12,730.00 

87489 Ferguson 
Waterworks 

Distribution meter 
parts $6,864.48 

87502 MurraySmith Engineering costs for 
WWTP $48,506.40 

87514 Petrocard Fuel for city vehicles $5,767.07 

87522 Selectemp 
Temporary 
employees for Public 
Works 

$6,018.60 

 
 

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-5128 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Finance Department 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.101 *REVISED 08/10/18



Passports: 
Since 2001, the city has been accepting passport applications for the United States 
Department of State. Travelers can call, stop by city hall or visit the city’s website for 
information on application requirements. 
 
For the month of July 2018, the city processed 29 passports and took 21 passport pictures. 
 
Lien Searches: 
 
The city has various liens that can be applied to properties in Sweet Home. The city can apply 
a lien for past due utility balances or a property owner can place a lien on their property for 
improvement assessments per ORS. An internet database maintains a list of these liens and is 
searchable by title companies for paying off outstanding balances during a sale. Each lien 
search generates $25.00 for the city. 
 
For the month of July 2018, 62 lien searches were completed. 
 
Utility Billing: 
In July 2017, utility billing became the responsibility of the Finance Department. Utility billing is 
responsible for the timely reading of water meters in the city and distribution of bills to 
residents and businesses. The revenue generated from the utility bills covers the costs 
associated with operating and maintaining the Water Treatment Plant and the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant as well as the maintenance of the city’s distribution and collection systems. 
 
For the month of July 2018, the city processed 280 service requests and saw 26 new 
customers open accounts in Sweet Home. In total, 51 accounts were opened and 42 were 
closed. The city processed 3,284 utility billing statements and 1,089 past due notices. 72 
accounts were turned off for non-payment. 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.102 *REVISED 08/10/18



User:

Printed: 08/04/2018 -  7:44PM

bneish

Bank Reconciliation

Cleared and Not Cleared Checks

Checks by Date

Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

7/9/2018 87462 BRADLEY CLARK AP  300.00

7/9/2018 87463 DEMCO AP  63.26

7/9/2018 87464 LGPI AP  1,375.00

7/9/2018 87465 MUSEUM OF NATURAL AND CULTURAL HISTORY AP  126.00

7/9/2018 87466 SAIF CORPORATION AP  56,360.00

7/18/2018 87467 DAVID LICHTENSTEIN AP  400.00

7/20/2018 0 DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE AP 7/23/2018  832.60

7/20/2018 87468 911 SUPPLY AP  178.80

7/20/2018 87469 ACCELA, INC. #774375 AP  3,262.50

7/20/2018 87470 ALSCO AP  308.22

7/20/2018 87471 AMERICAN PROMOTIONAL EVENTS INC NW AP  25.00

7/20/2018 87472 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES AP  453.12

7/20/2018 87473 AWE ACQUISITION, INC. AP  550.00

7/20/2018 87474 BUCKMASTER, INC. AP  153.00

7/20/2018 87475 BUCK'S SANITARY SERVICE, INC. AP  348.00

7/20/2018 87476 BULLFROG ENTERPRISES AP  177.33

7/20/2018 87477 CARTER'S FIRE SPRINKLER MAINT. & PIPING, INC. AP  3,774.00

7/20/2018 87478 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT AP  175.56

7/20/2018 87479 CENTURYLINK AP  1,327.44

7/20/2018 87480 CH2M OM SERVICES AP  5,000.00

7/20/2018 87481 CITY DELIVERY SERVICE AP  37.90

7/20/2018 87482 COMCAST AP  466.14

7/20/2018 87483 CUES AP  1,717.47

7/20/2018 87484 DAN DEE SALES AP  40.00

7/20/2018 87485 DRIVER AND MOTOR VEHICLE SERVICES AP  11.50

7/20/2018 87486 DUDE SOLUTIONS, INC. AP  12,730.00

7/20/2018 87487 Shawn Eaton AP  15.99

7/20/2018 87488 FASTENAL COMPANY AP  157.54

7/20/2018 87489 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011 ACCT# 40579 AP  6,864.48

7/20/2018 87490 GATEWAY IMPRINTS, INC. AP  440.00

7/20/2018 87491 GOING GREEN AP  35.00

7/20/2018 87492 HOY'S TRUE VALUE AP  2,743.00

7/20/2018 87493 HUTCHINS WELDING AND REPAIR, LLC AP  25.70

7/20/2018 87494 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES AP  287.22

7/20/2018 87495 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL AP  134.69

7/20/2018 87496 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER AP  129.72

7/20/2018 87497 LIBERTY ROCK PRODUCTS, INC. AP  439.46

7/20/2018 87498 LINN BENTON TRACTOR CO. AP  1,524.34

7/20/2018 87499 LINN COUNTY RECORDER AP  105.00

7/20/2018 87500 LINN COUNTY TREASURER AP  176.00

7/20/2018 87501 MOONLIGHT BPO, INC. AP  2,130.33

7/20/2018 87502 MURRAYSMITH AP  48,506.40

7/20/2018 87503 NATIONAL BUSINESS SOLUTIONS CORP AP  998.05

7/20/2018 87504 NET ASSETS AP  494.00

7/20/2018 87505 NEW ERA AP  3,926.14

7/20/2018 87506 NORM'S ELECTRIC, INC. AP  95.00

BR-Checks by Date (8/4/2018 -  7:44 PM) Page 1

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.103 *REVISED 08/10/18



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

7/20/2018 87507 NORTHWEST CODE PROFESSIONALS AP  2,633.07

7/20/2018 87508 NORTHWEST NATURAL AP  213.47

7/20/2018 87509 O & M POINT S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. AP  14.00

7/20/2018 87510 OFFICE DEPOT AP  158.18

7/20/2018 87511 OREGON DEPT. OF REVENUE AP  1,331.63

7/20/2018 87512 OWEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC. AP  632.15

7/20/2018 87513 PACIFIC POWER AP  21,240.57

7/20/2018 87514 PETROCARD AP  5,767.07

7/20/2018 87515 PETTY CASH - FINANCE OFFICE AP  27.30

7/20/2018 87516 PETTY CASH - LIBRARY AP  112.13

7/20/2018 87517 CITY OF SWEET HOME POLICE DEPT. AP  142.55

7/20/2018 87518 RENEWED PROPERTIES, LLC AP  129.10

7/20/2018 87519 SAIF CORPORATION AP  75.00

7/20/2018 87520 SAMARITAN OCCUPATIONAL MED AP  268.00

7/20/2018 87521 Paul Doug Seibel AP  3,000.00

7/20/2018 87522 SELECTEMP CORPORATION AP  6,018.60

7/20/2018 87523 SOUTH FORK TRADING CO., INC. AP  377.99

7/20/2018 87524 GERRIT SOUTHARD AP  83.75

7/20/2018 87525 STANDARD INS. CO. AP  3,837.07

7/20/2018 87526 STAPLES ADVANTAGE AP  2,423.99

7/20/2018 87527 SUNBELT RENTALS, INC. AP  555.11

7/20/2018 87528 SUNSHINE INDUSTRIES UNLIMITED, INC. AP  1,300.00

7/20/2018 87529 SURE-CLEAN NORTHWEST, INC. AP  94.00

7/20/2018 87530 REBECCA SWOBODA AP  45.72

7/20/2018 87531 SYNCB/AMAZON AP  1,076.80

7/20/2018 87532 TELL & SELL AP  155.72

7/20/2018 87533 The Fab Shop, LLC AP  2,915.71

7/20/2018 87534 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  561.61

7/20/2018 87535 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AP  3,112.50

7/20/2018 87536 VALLEY FIRE CONTROL, INC. AP  1,056.80

7/20/2018 87537 VERIZON WIRELESS AP  1,651.30

7/20/2018 87538 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING AP  49.00

7/20/2018 87539 WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SERV AP  296.00

7/20/2018 87540 WILBUR-ELLIS COMPANY LLC AP  492.14

Total Check Count:  80

Total Check Amount:  221,268.93

BR-Checks by Date (8/4/2018 -  7:44 PM) Page 2

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.104 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.105 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.106 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.107 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.108 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.109 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.110 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.111 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.112 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.113 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.114 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.115 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.116 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.117 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.118 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.119 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.120 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.121 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.122 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.123 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.124 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.125 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.126 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.127 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.128 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.129 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.130 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.131 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.132 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.133 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.134 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.135 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.136 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.137 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.138 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.139 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.140 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.141 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.142 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.143 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.144 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.145 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.146 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.147 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.148 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.149 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.150 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.151 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.152 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.153 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.154 *REVISED 08/10/18



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Ray Towry, City Manager 
FROM:  Trish Rice, Public Works Engineering 
  on behalf of Greg Springman, Public Works Director 
DATE:   August 6, 2018 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Projects/Activities Report 
 
  
 
This memorandum provides a brief periodic update of specific projects and activities performed 
by Public Works. 
 
Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) Dashboard 
This dashboard section summarizes work done on key maintenance activities.  Goals will be 
adjusted over time as workloads shift to keep up with current requirements.  Routine activities 
are tracked monthly.  Seasonal activities are tracked on a year-to-date basis and may not reflect 
work done prior to implementing our new Dude Solutions work order system. 
 

Potholes repaired
1/30

Street sweeping miles
343/300

Locate tickets
18/40

Water leak repairs
1/5

Hydrant service/repairs (YTD)
70/200

Playground equipment inspection 4x each
3/16

Clean parks restrooms & garbage 8x each
70/72

Mow each park 12x each (YTD)
67/96

Sewer main miles CCTV (YTD)
0.3/15

Sewer main miles cleaned (YTD)
0/15

Manhole leak repairs (YTD)
0/8

Catch basins inspect & clean (YTD)
0/45

July 2018

 
 
 
  

Work Orders

Posted: 686

Completed: 584

Top 10 Categories

Water Turn Ons/Offs 85

Bathrooms/Garbage 74

High Grass 47

Park Maintenance 39

Mowing 29

Locates 28

Meter Re-Read 22

Other - Streets 19

Paint/Street Markings 16

Police Department 15  

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.155 *REVISED 08/10/18



Current & Upcoming Projects 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project 

Scope: Upgrades to equipment & processes for DEQ Compliance. 

Status: Staff & design team held video conference scheduled on July 11, 2018 to discuss 
preliminary design progress.  Staff & design team held video conference with Energy Trust of 
Oregon scheduled on July 16, 2018 to initiate funding discussion.  Site visits to The Dalles 
WWTP and Pendleton WWTP are tentatively scheduled for late August.  Project is on 
schedule. 

 
Dude Solutions - Work Order Management System 

Scope: Replace existing PubWorks database with Dude Solutions work order management 
system. 

Status: Software purchased. Training completed in May 2018. Software currently utilized by 
PW staff. Staff to schedule demonstration for City Council. 

 
Sankey Park BMX Improvements 

Scope: Improvement of BMX track infrastructure.  

Status: Staff restored fill material inside track, staff mitigated over-grown vegetation, cleaned-
up material from tree removal. Staff to order benches, picnic tables, and trash cans. 

 
Parks Irrigation System Improvements 

Scope: Inspect and repair existing irrigation systems in Sankey Park, Northside Park, and 
Ashbrook Park.  

Status: Staff completed installation of new irrigation system at Ashbrook Park. Staff has 
ordered materials to install new irrigation system at Northside Park, east side of Clover Park, 
and remainder of lower Sankey Park. 

 
2018 Overlay Project 

Scope: 2” pavement overlay on 18th Ave, Ames Creek Rd, 45th-46th-47th Aves, & Kalmia St. 

Status: Project is in preliminary design. 
 
Weddle Bridge Inspection and Tuning 

Scope: Inspect and maintain Weddle Bridge. 

Status: Staff has scheduled an inspection of Weddle Bridge to certify structural integrity. 
Recommendations for tuning the bridge will be provided in a report following the inspection 
process.  

 
  

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.156 *REVISED 08/10/18



 
Public Works Facility Security Upgrades 

Scope: Install security system at Public Works Facility 

Status: Staff installed new security system at Public Works Facility. Staff is making camera 
adjustments as needed to ensure proper camera coverage of Public Works grounds. Staff is 
in discussion with an alarm system vendor for the equipment yard. 

 
DEQ - 18th Ave Groundwater Contamination Resolution 

Scope: Support DEQ project to resolve neighborhood issue of contaminated groundwater 
east of 18th Ave and north of Tamarack St. 

Status:  Project is in predesign by 3rd party. 

 
Air/Vacuum Valve Program 

Scope: Locate air/vacuum relief valves on city water system and prioritize recommended 
maintenance, to resolve distribution issues caused by air pockets. 

Status: New valve installed at LakePointe Pump Station.  New valve installed at highway by 
Murphy Mill.  Replaced existing dysfunctional valve at 44th Ave.  Work will be ongoing. 

 
Water Service Reconnection Program 

Scope: On streets with redundant water mains, reconnect water services from old 2” mains to 
existing new larger mains and abandon redundant 2” mains. 

Status: Plans for Elm St service reconnections are complete & ready for bid. 

 
10th Ave Reservoir Leak & SCADA Relocation 

Scope: Resolve water loss issue from leaking 1938 reservoir and relocate SCADA equipment 
to newer reservoir. 

Status: Staff is obtaining quotes from contractors to replace the broken isolation valve that 
controls the reservoir.  The SCADA contractor is preparing a quote for relocating equipment 
onto the newest reservoir on 10th Ave which will provide better level data at low storage levels 
and allow continuance of data connection while the old reservoir is isolated/evaluated. 

 
Linn Shuttle Bus Shelters 

Scope: Support Linn Shuttle grant project to install bus shelters at highway locations. 

Status: Linn Shuttle has retained a contractor for installation and has ordered the shelters.  
Staff is assisting with the ODOT application. 

 
 

City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.157 *REVISED 08/10/18



City Council Packet 08-14-18 pg.158 *REVISED 08/10/18


	(A) City Council Agenda 08-14-18
	(C)(1) Council Minutes 07-17-18 - WS
	(C)(2) Council Minutes 07-24-18 - WS
	(C)(3) Council Minutes 07-24-18
	(E)(a)(1) RCA - ODOT MTEP Update 14Aug2018
	(E)(a)(1.5) Sweet Home Enhance project map
	(E)(a)(2) MTEP Agreement Amendment
	(E)(a)(3) MTEP Agreement - Signed
	(E)(a)(4) MTEP Funding
	(E)(b)(1) RCA - 2018 SH Comm Foundation MOU 08-14-18
	(E)(b)(2) MOU SHCF and City FINAL for Council Mtng 08 14 2018
	(F)(a)(1) RCA - 2018 Charter Revision Consensus 08-14-2018
	(F)(a)(2) SWEET HOME CITY CHARTER
	(G)(a) RCA - Solid Waste Rates
	(G)(a)(1) Ord No 3 for 1998 Ord No. 1117 - Solid Waste Mgmt
	(G)(a)(2) Ordinance Bill No. 7 for 2017 - 1261 - Solid Waste
	(G)(a)(3) Sweet Home Sanitation Memo - Request for Recycling Rate Adjustment
	(G)(a)(4) Changes to Solid Waste Franchise Ordinance No
	(G)(a)(5) Ord Bill No. 3 for 2018 - Solid Waste Rates
	(G)(a)(6) Exhibit A for City Council
	(G)(B)(1) RCA - 2018 City Council Rules Adoption 08-14-18
	(G)(B)(3) City of Sweet Home City Council Rules - August 14 2018 CC mtng DRAFT
	(G)(b)(4) City of Sweet Home City Council Rules - August 14 2018 CC mtng FINAL
	(G)(b)(5) 2.04 Track Changes
	(G)(b)(6) 2.04 Final
	(G)(b)(7) Ord. Bill No. 4 for 2018 - Council Rules
	(J)(1) City Council 07-16-18 Community Health Committee
	(K)(C) Finance Report - July
	(k)(c)(1) Checks by Date
	(K)(c)(iv)(1) PD Stats 1 of 2
	(K)(c)(iv)(2) PD Stats 2 of 2
	(k)(v)(1) PW Monthly Report 2018-08-07
	(L) Comcast Notice 08-01-18



